
Public Notice 

 

Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation District 
Regular Board Meeting Agenda 

Wednesday, December 16, 2020 5:00 p.m.     

Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://www.gotomeet.me/MCBWaterSanitationDistrict 

You can also dial in using your phone. 
United States: +1 (872) 240-3212 

(When prompted for audio PIN, please input your (area code) and phone #) 
Access Code: 370-521-317 

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/370521317 

Public Hearing Agenda  

The Board may address individual agenda items at their discretion as necessary to accommodate the needs of the 
Board and audience. 

1. Call to Order

2. Board Deliberation and Potential Decision

3. Adjourn

1. Call to Order

2. Public Hearing on The Petition for Inclusion into The District Submitted by Hunter Ridge, LLC,

3. Adjourn

Board Meeting Agenda 



[Street Address, City, ST ZIP Code] 
[Phone] 

[Website] 

45 Hunter Hill Road Inclusion Information Contents 

Contents: 

1. Notice of Public Hearing

2. Hunter Ridge, LLC. Inclusion Application

3. Sanitary Sewer Analysis

4. Public Comments

5. MCBWSD Staff Recommendation

2 of 223



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE 
MT. CRESTED BUTTE WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT 

Please take notice that the Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation District (the “District”) 
will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, December 16, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. in a virtual 
meeting format due to COVID-19 restrictions. 

Please join the meeting at https://www.gotomeet.me/MCBWaterSanitationDistrict 
or dial in at (872)240-3212 (Access Code 370-521-317). Further meeting 
instructions can be found at www.mcbwsd.com/Agendas-Meetings-Minutes. 

The purpose of the hearing is for public input on a petition for inclusion into the 
District by Hunter Ridge, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company, the address of 
which is P.O. Box 1935, Crested Butte, CO 81224.  The property proposed to be 
included within the District is commonly referred to as 45 Hunter Hill Road in Mt. 
Crested Butte, a 10.458-acre tract with the legal parcel number of 3177-264-00-053.  
The full legal description of the property is set forth in the petition for inclusion on 
file with the District.   

All persons interested shall appear at the date and time set forth above and show 
cause in writing why the petition should not be granted.  Those who speak at the 
public hearing shall be allowed a maximum of 5 minutes to express their comments 
to the Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation District Board of Directors.  Advanced 
written comments are encouraged and should be received at the Mt. Crested Butte 
Water & Sanitation District, PO Box 5740, Mt. Crested Butte, CO 81225 or by fax to 
(970) 349-0412, or by email to info@mcbwsd.com by Tuesday, December 1, 2020 at
5:00 PM, Mountain Time.

For a digital copy of the petition please visit https://www.mcbwsd.com/57541 

No action or discussion shall take place by the Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation 
District Board of Directors until the public hearing is officially closed. 

Dated this 12th day of November 2020. 

 /s/ Mike Fabbre_ 
District Manager 

Published in the Crested Butte News.  
Issue of November 13, 20, 27, and December 4, 2020. 

3 of 223

https://www.gotomeet.me/MCBWaterSanitationDistrict
file://server2/Documents/Hunter%20Ridge/For%20Publication/www.mcbwsd.com/Agendas-Meetings-Minutes
mailto:info@mcbwsd.com


Feb 28, 2020 

Mt. Crested Butte Water and Sanitation District 

Petition for Inclusion 

6.4.1 : Hunter Ridge, LLC. Jamie Watt, Managing Partner 
PO Box 1935 
Crested Butte, CO 81224 

6.4.2: Shanon Phillips. 100% stockholder 
40336 Loosemoore Rd 
Gonzales, LA 7073 7 

6.4.3: See attached consent form 

6.4.4: NIA

6.4.5: See attached 

6.4.6: See attached 

6.4.7: No water rights 

6.4.8: NIA

6.4.9: No water or sewer facilities. 8" sewer main running through entire property 

6.4.10: To be submitted week of March 2-5 

6.4.11: NIA

6.4.12: To be submitted week of March 2-5 

6.4.13: As requested 

6.4.14: Attached 

6.4.15: See attached 

4 of 223



6.4.16: See attached 

Submitted by 

Jamieatt.Managing Partner, 
Hunter Ridge, LLC. 

Date 

5 of 223



�T
r.• 

\l 
� · .. •;.. 
•;...::.� .. '-.::. 

Feb.6, 2020 

As 100% owner of the shares of Hunter Ridge, LLC, I give my consent for the Petition for 

lncluslon submitted by Jamie Watt, Managing Partner, to the Mt. Crested Butte Water & 

Sanitation Department. 

Date 

6 of 223



qPublic.net - Gwmison County, CO - Report: R033 l 98 https:llqpublic.scboeidercorp.com/ Application.aspx?ApplD: 1013& ... 

� � \ \__( ' 6

0 qPublic.net
"' 

Gunnison County, CO 

Summary 

Aa:o.-rt Number 
Parcel Number 
Aaiount Type 
Economic Area 
Tax District 
MHll..ny 
Property Loc.,tion 
Neighborhood 
LEA 
Subdivision 
Condo 
legal Description 
Parcel Notes 

R033198 
31n-2b4--00-053 
"-it 
EmnNe.16 
606 
56.667 
45 HUNTER Hill. RD. MT CRESTED BUTT£ 
NIA 
MT CBACREAGE(60220) 
NIA 
NIA 
11. 933A JNSW4SE4.SEC 2613586W 1651954 

STAlEMENT OF N..llltOROY 1523479 KN.JAi "VENTURE 1.1!: 
lUTAL PARCEl. � 10.4S8AC 

ViewMaQ 
Note, Legal Deicnpt100 above is abbn,viated for use oo Asse=r records and is not valid for use oo legal 
documents. 

Owner 

Owner 
HlJNT£R RIDGE lLC 
40336 LOOSEMOORE RD 
GONZALES. IA 70737-81:JO 

Current Assessment Information 

+ Land Actua!Value 

... BuildlngActualYalue 

Tot;,1 Ac:tual Value 

+ LandAssessedValue 

♦ Bwdlng.AssessedY.alue 
Total A!!sessed Value 

Prior Year Assessment Information 

Year Actual v..lue 

2019 $513.490 
2018 $457.960 
2017 $457.960 
2016 $473.740 
2015 $473,740 
2014 $254,890 
2013 $254,890 
2012 St.460.600 
2011 St.460.600 
2010 $682,710 
2009 $682.710 
2008 $850,460 
2007 $850,460 
2006 $267.640 

Assessed value 

$148.910 
$132.810 
Sll2.810 
$137,380 
$137.380 
$73.920 
$73,920 
$423.570 
$423.570 
$197,990 

$197.990 
$246.630 
$246,630 
sn.620 

Business Name 

2019 
SS13.490 

so 

$513.490 

$148,910 

so 

$148,910 

Mill..evy AdValon!mTaJCeS 
56.667 $8.438.28 
58.652 $7,789.57 
59.243 $7,868.06 
55.636 $7.643.29 
54.825 $7,531.86 
56.397 $4.168.85 
49.795 $3.680.85 
43.359 $18.365.57 
44.434 $18,820.91 
40.244 $7,967.91 
39.091 $7,739.64 
40.652 $10,026.00 
35.448 $8,742.56 
44.485 S3.452.92 

Contact the Treasurer's Office for current property t•• �fTIOll!lt due Oo not use the figures above to payoutst�nding property taxes 

I of 3 2/8!'20, 4:43 PM 

7 of 223



Land Title Guarantee Company 

Customer Distribution 

Landli� 
Gt.lAl"-�ET ait.lMh-,. 

-.�llf#iJ67-
I:\ PREVENT FRAUD - Please 1'f1111efflber to call a member of our closing team

� when initiating a wire transfer or providing wiring instructions. 

Order Number: GUR88000227·9 Date: 01/02/2018 

Property Address: (VACANT LAND) HUNTER HILL ROAD, MT. CRESTED BUTTE, CO 
81225 

PLEASE CONTACT YOUR CLOSER OR CLOSER'S ASSISTANT FOR WIRE TRANSFER INSTRUCTIONS 

For Closing Assistance 

Christina Cesario 
411 THIRD STREET 
CRESTED BUTTE, CO 81224 
(970) 349-0115 (Work)
(800) 834-5192 (Work Fax)

ccesario@ltgc,com 
Company license: CO44565 

Buyer/Borrower 
HUNTER RIDGE, LLC 
Delivered via: No Commitment Delivery 

Seller/Owner 

Closer's Assistant 

Shirley Barcome 

For Title Assistance 

Your Response Team 
411 THIRD STREET 
CRESTED BUTTE, CO 81224 
(970) 349-0115 (Work)

411 THIRD STREET 
CRESTED BUTTE, CO 81224 
(970) 626-7001 (Work)

(800) 833-4065 (Work Fax)
sbarcome@ltgc.com 
Company License: CO44565 

Agent for Seller 

(877) 3 75-5025 (Work Fax)
acresgoose@ltgc,com

CRESTED BUTTE RESORT REAL ESTATE LLC 
Attention: CINDY ERVIN 
PO BOX5700 
MT CRESTED BUTTE, CO 81225 
(970) 209-5233 (Cell)
(970) 349-4999 (Work)
(970) 349-4265 (Work Fax)
cervln@cbmr.com

Agent for Seller 
GLACIER BANK, A MONTANA BANKING 
CORPORATION 

THE REAL ESTATE STORE 
Attention: MICHELLE KLIPPERT 
500E MAIN ST Delivered via: No Commitment Delivery 

Agent for Buyer 
CRESTED BUTTE RESORT REAL ESTATE LLC 
Attention: JAMIE WATT 
PO BOX5700 
MT CRESTED BUTTE, CO 81225 
(970) 209-2675 (Cell)
(970) 349-4265 (Work)
alpinewatt@hotmail.com

> 

MONTROSE, CO 81401 
(970) 275-3016 (Cell)
(970) 249-7653 (Work)
michelleklippertrealtor@gmail.com

8 of 223



Feb.6,2020 

Hunter Ridge,LLC, as pertaining to the Included Parcel shall, upon demand, convey to the 
District all water and sewer facilities constructed upon the Included Parcel and adequate and 
necessary easements and rights of way for the purpose of construction. maintenance and repair 
for the water facilities and sewer facilities. 

amie W�ing Partner Hunter Ridge, LLC Date 

9 of 223



Feb.6,2020 

Hunter Ridge,LLC, as pertaining to the Included Parcel shall agree to pay all costs, fees and 
expenses incurred by the District in reviewing the Petition for Inclusion, the adequacy of the 
water rights, the ability of the District to adequately serve the Included Parcel and the District's 
legal and administrative costs pertaining to the inclusion proceedings. 

Date 

10 of 223



 
 
 
 
4/6/20 
 
Mt. Crested Butte Water and Sanitation District 
 
 

Petition for Inclusion 
 
6.4.1 : Hunter Ridge, LLC. Jamie Watt, Managing Partner 
            PO Box 1935 
            Crested Butte, CO  81224 
            970-209-2675 
 
6.4.2: Shanon Phillips. 100% stockholder 
          40336 Loosemoore Rd 
          Gonzales, LA  70737 
          225-290-2720 
 
6.4.2 Registered Agent: Charles F. Cliggett 
         319 Elk Ave. 
         Crested Butte, CO  81224 
         Mailing address; PO Box 867 
         Gunnison, CO  81230 
         970-641-1154 
 
6.4.3: See attached consent form 
 
6.4.4:  N/A 
 
6.4.5: See attached 
 
6.4.6: See attached 
 
6.4.7: No water rights 
 
6.4.8: N/A 
 
6.4.9: No water or sewer facilities. 8" sewer main running through entire property 
 
6.4.10: Submitted week of March 2-5 
 
6.4.11:  N/A 

11 of 223



 
6.4.12:  Submitted week of March 2-5 
 
6.4.13:  As requested 
 
6.4.14:  Attached 
 
6.4.15:  See attached 
 
6.4.16:  See attached  
 
Submitted by  
 
 
 
______________________________                __________________ 
Jamie Watt, Managing Partner,                            Date 
Hunter Ridge, LLC. 
 
 
            

 
 

12 of 223



13 of 223



14 of 223



15 of 223



16 of 223



17 of 223



Land Title Guarantee Company
Customer Distribution

PREVENT FRAUD - Please remember to call a member of our closing team
when initiating a wire transfer or providing wiring instructions.

Order Number: GUR88000227-9 Date: 01/02/2018

Property Address: (VACANT LAND) HUNTER HILL ROAD, MT. CRESTED BUTTE, CO
81225

PLEASE CONTACT YOUR CLOSER OR CLOSER'S ASSISTANT FOR WIRE TRANSFER INSTRUCTIONS

For Closing Assistance Closer's Assistant For Title Assistance

Christina Cesario
411 THIRD STREET
CRESTED BUTTE, CO 81224
(970) 349-0115 (Work)
(800) 834-5192 (Work Fax)
ccesario@ltgc.com
Company License: CO44565

Shirley Barcome
411 THIRD STREET
CRESTED BUTTE, CO 81224
(970) 349-0115 (Work)
(800) 833-4065 (Work Fax)
sbarcome@ltgc.com
Company License: CO44565

Your Response Team
411 THIRD STREET
CRESTED BUTTE, CO 81224
(970) 626-7001 (Work)
(877) 375-5025 (Work Fax)
gcresponse@ltgc.com

Buyer/Borrower
HUNTER RIDGE, LLC
Delivered via: No Commitment Delivery

Agent for Seller
CRESTED BUTTE RESORT REAL ESTATE LLC
Attention: CINDY ERVIN
PO BOX 5700
MT CRESTED BUTTE, CO 81225
(970) 209-5233 (Cell)
(970) 349-4999 (Work)
(970) 349-4265 (Work Fax)
cervin@cbmr.com

Seller/Owner
GLACIER BANK, A MONTANA BANKING
CORPORATION
Delivered via: No Commitment Delivery

Agent for Seller
THE REAL ESTATE STORE
Attention: MICHELLE KLIPPERT
500 E MAIN ST
MONTROSE, CO 81401
(970) 275-3016 (Cell)
(970) 249-7653 (Work)
michelleklippertrealtor@gmail.com

Agent for Buyer
CRESTED BUTTE RESORT REAL ESTATE LLC
Attention: JAMIE WATT
PO BOX 5700
MT CRESTED BUTTE, CO 81225
(970) 209-2675 (Cell)
(970) 349-4265 (Work)
alpinewatt@hotmail.com

18 of 223

mailto:ccesario@ltgc.com?subject=Commitment - 88000227
mailto:sbarcome@ltgc.com?subject=Commitment - 88000227
mailto:gcresponse@ltgc.com?subject=Commitment - 88000227


Land Title Guarantee Company
Estimate of Title Fees

Order Number: GUR88000227-9 Date: 01/02/2018

Property Address: (VACANT LAND) HUNTER HILL ROAD, MT. CRESTED BUTTE, CO 81225

Parties: HUNTER RIDGE, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Seller: GLACIER BANK, A MONTANA BANKING CORPORATION

Visit Land Title's Website at www.ltgc.com for directions to any of our offices.

Estimate of Title insurance Fees

"ALTA" Owner's Policy 06-17-06 $1,271.00

Deletion of Standard Exception(s) $65.00

Tax Certificate $25.00

Total $1,361.00

If Land Title Guarantee Company will be closing this transaction, the fees listed above will be collected at closing.

Thank you for your order!

CHAIN OF TITLE DOCUMENTS: Gunnison county recorded 03/30/2015 under reception no. 632079

Gunnison county recorded 08/22/2011 under reception no. 607524

19 of 223

http://www.ltgc.com
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyNzguMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4Mjc4LCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJyZWNlcHRpb24iOiI2MzIwNzkiLCJjb3VudHkiOiIwODA1MSIsImlkX3ZlcnNpb24iOjMxMDM2MCwieWVhciI6MjAxNSwiYm9vayI6IiIsInBhZ2UiOiIifQ.Xq9XO9tTaUnlCrHb3zti1DlBp6bkaBZ7RKaY3nV5I6Y
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyNzguMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4Mjc4LCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJyZWNlcHRpb24iOiI2MDc1MjQiLCJjb3VudHkiOiIwODA1MSIsImlkX3ZlcnNpb24iOjMxMDM2MCwieWVhciI6MjAxMSwiYm9vayI6IiIsInBhZ2UiOiIifQ.HRhtFTjuQWuqbz44iPEG6hTRjaLh-DlSl9Z9aVOOsvo


Customer Ref-Loan No.:

Property Address:

(VACANT LAND) HUNTER HILL ROAD, MT. CRESTED BUTTE, CO 81225

1. Effective Date:

06/02/2017 at 5:00 P.M.

2. Policy to be Issued and Proposed Insured:

"ALTA" Owner's Policy 06-17-06
Proposed Insured:
HUNTER RIDGE, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY

$500,000.00

3. The estate or interest in the land described or referred to in this Commitment and covered herein is:

A Fee Simple

4. Title to the estate or interest covered herein is at the effective date hereof vested in:

GLACIER BANK, A MONTANA BANKING CORPORATION

5. The Land referred to in this Commitment is described as follows:

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SW¼SE¼ OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 86
WEST, 6TH P.M., MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SE 1/16TH CORNER OF SAID SECTION 26;
THENCE SOUTH 89°36'06" WEST A DISTANCE OF 735.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID
SW¼SE¼;
THENCE SOUTH 01°46'06" WEST A DISTANCE OF 370.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 39°43'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 434.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 50°28'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 429.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 24°53'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 180.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 58°48'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 127.07 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST BOUNDARY OF
SAID SW¼SE¼;
THENCE NORTH 02°11'48" WEST ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY A DISTANCE OF 1211.64 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING;

LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND AS CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION IN THE DEED RECORDED AUGUST 28, 1972 IN BOOK 443
AT PAGE 74;

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION BY DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 25, 1974 IN BOOK 465
AT PAGE 427 AND IN DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 26, 1974 IN BOOK 465 AT PAGE 429,

ALTA COMMITMENT

Stewart Title Guaranty Company

Schedule A

Order Number:GUR88000227-9

20 of 223

https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNDQzIiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiNzQiLCJ5ZWFyIjoxOTcyLCJjb3VudHkiOiIwODA1MSJ9.HU_xx8o0kqto4eP8GX1yAWNmYm0e_mSe70_3uAMV2po/Gunnison_1972_443/74.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNDY1IiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiNDI3IiwieWVhciI6MTk3NCwiY291bnR5IjoiMDgwNTEifQ.KWBpr-qaUrMkvgRYktrJJyhOJ_Qbr7aDp-zwwtKaI7k/Gunnison_1974_465/427.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNDY1IiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiNDI5IiwieWVhciI6MTk3NCwiY291bnR5IjoiMDgwNTEifQ.CJMS4szAvyBD6XrgZmQPXXqYYBOd4PHAEQc4HPeMaZc/Gunnison_1974_465/429.pdf


Copyright 2006-2018 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.

The use of this Form is restricted to ALTA licensees and ALTA members in good standing
as of the date of use. All other uses are prohibited. Reprinted under license from the
American Land Title Association.

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TWO TRACTS OF LAND CONVEYED TO MLJ REAL ESTATE, LP BY
WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JULY 15, 2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627782 AND RERECORDED JULY
28, 2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627999,

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE,
BEING A PORTION OF HUNTER HILL ROAD, IN BARGAIN AND SALE DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 24,
2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 625652,

COUNTY OF GUNNISON,
STATE OF COLORADO.

ALTA COMMITMENT

Stewart Title Guaranty Company

Schedule A

Order Number:GUR88000227-9

21 of 223

https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjpudWxsLCJyZWNlcHRpb24iOiI2Mjc3ODIiLCJwYWdlIjpudWxsLCJ5ZWFyIjoyMDE0LCJjb3VudHkiOiIwODA1MSJ9.YTrI7odrISNLKDQeYSNcNlMNMucIpE3Lt9kw3-1uxsM/Gunnison_2014_627782.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjpudWxsLCJyZWNlcHRpb24iOiI2Mjc5OTkiLCJwYWdlIjpudWxsLCJ5ZWFyIjoyMDE0LCJjb3VudHkiOiIwODA1MSJ9.2u4wIsCmh0zt0k6jOXroExe-NcEtPXU9FanU1NB3ZXg/Gunnison_2014_627999.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjpudWxsLCJyZWNlcHRpb24iOiI2MjU2NTIiLCJwYWdlIjpudWxsLCJ5ZWFyIjoyMDE0LCJjb3VudHkiOiIwODA1MSJ9.YPC_xVazPhFOgDzgGE4GQ5awVjT_wxtHUkTgnu6kZ0w/Gunnison_2014_625652.pdf


Payment to or for the account of the grantors or mortgagors of the full consideration for the estate or
interest to be insured.

Proper instrument(s) creating the estate or interest to be insured must be executed and duly filed for record,
to-wit:

1. (THIS ITEM WAS INTENTIONALLY DELETED)

2. (THIS ITEM WAS INTENTIONALLY DELETED)

3. CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING OF GLACIER BANK, A MONTANA BANKING CORPORATION, ISSUED
BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF MONTANA.

4. WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS AUTHORIZING LAND TITLE TO PREPARE A STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY FOR
HUNTER RIDGE, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, STATING UNDER WHICH LAWS THE
ENTITY WAS CREATED, THE MAILING ADDRESS OF THE ENTITY, AND THE NAME AND POSITION OF
THE PERSON(S) AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE INSTRUMENTS CONVEYING, ENCUMBERING, OR
OTHERWISE AFFECTING TITLE TO REAL PROPERTY ON BEHALF OF THE ENTITY; OR, A DULY
EXECUTED AND ACKNOWLEDGED STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY SETTING FORTH THE NAME OF
HUNTER RIDGE, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AS A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY. 

NOTE: ANY STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY MUST BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION
38-30-172, C.R.S. AND BE RECORDED WITH THE CLERK AND RECORDER.

NOTE: THE OPERATING AGREEMENT FOR HUNTER RIDGE, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY DISCLOSES JAMIE WATT OR SHANNON PHILLIPS AS THE MANAGER/MEMBER THAT ARE
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE LEGAL INSTRUMENTS ON BEHALF OF SAID ENTITY.

5. (THIS ITEM WAS INTENTIONALLY DELETED)

6. (THIS ITEM WAS INTENTIONALLY DELETED)

7. WARRANTY DEED FROM GLACIER BANK, A MONTANA BANKING CORPORATION TO HUNTER RIDGE,
LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY CONVEYING SUBJECT PROPERTY.

NOTE: SAID DOCUMENT CAN BE EXECUTED BY THE PRESIDENT, VICE-PRESIDENT OR CHAIRMAN OF
THE BOARD (CEO) OF THE CORPORATION. IF ANY OTHER OFFICER OF THE CORPORATION OR AGENT
EXECUTES SAID DOCUMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CORPORATION, A POWER OF
ATTORNEY/RESOLUTION MUST BE PROVIDED TO LAND TITLE GRANTING SAID AUTHORIZATION.

ALTA COMMITMENT

Stewart Title Guaranty Company

Schedule B-1

(Requirements)

Order Number: GUR88000227-9

The following are the requirements to be complied with:

22 of 223



REQUIREMENTS TO DELETE THE PRE-PRINTED EXCEPTIONS IN THE OWNER'S POLICY TO BE ISSUED 

A. UPON RECEIPT BY THE COMPANY OF A SATISFACTORY FINAL AFFIDAVIT AND AGREEMENT FROM
THE SELLER AND PROPOSED INSURED, EXCEPTIONS 1 THROUGH 4 OF THE STANDARD EXCEPTIONS
WILL BE DELETED. ANY ADVERSE MATTERS DISCLOSED BY THE FINAL AFFIDAVIT AND AGREEMENT
WILL BE ADDED AS EXCEPTIONS. 

B. IF LAND TITLE GUARANTEE COMPANY CONDUCTS THE CLOSING OF THE CONTEMPLATED
TRANSACTIONS AND RECORDS THE DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, EXCEPTION NO. 5 OF
THE STANDARD EXCEPTIONS WILL BE DELETED. 

C. UPON RECEIPT OF PROOF OF PAYMENT OF ALL PRIOR YEARS' TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS,
EXCEPTION NO. 6 OF THE STANDARD EXCEPTIONS WILL BE AMENDED TO READ: 

TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2017 AND SUBSEQUENT YEARS.

NOTE: THE COMMITMENT DOES NOT REFLECT THE STATUS OF TITLE TO WATER RIGHTS OR
REPRESENTATION OF SAID RIGHTS.

NOTE: THIS COMMITMENT IS NOT A REPORT OR REPRESENTATION AS TO MINERAL INTERESTS, AND
SHOULD NOT BE USED, OR RELIED UPON, IN CONNECTION WITH THE NOTICE REQUIREMENTS THAT
ARE SET FORTH IN CRS 24-65.5-103.

ALTA COMMITMENT

Stewart Title Guaranty Company

Schedule B-1

(Requirements)

Order Number: GUR88000227-9

The following are the requirements to be complied with:

23 of 223



1. Any facts, rights, interests, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records but that could be
ascertained by an inspection of the Land or that may be asserted by persons in possession of the Land.

2. Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records.

3. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that
would be disclosed by an accurate and complete land survey of the Land and not shown by the Public
Records.

4. Any lien, or right to a lien, for services, labor or material heretofore or hereafter furnished, imposed by law
and not shown by the Public Records.

5. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters, if any, created, first appearing in the public
records or attaching subsequent to the effective date hereof but prior to the date of the proposed insured
acquires of record for value the estate or interest or mortgage thereon covered by this Commitment.

6. (a) Taxes or assessments that are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that
levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the Public Records; (b) proceedings by a public agency
that may result in taxes or assessments, or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown by the
records of such agency or by the Public Records.

7. (a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance
thereof; (c) water rights, claims or title to water.

8. RIGHT OF WAY FOR DITCHES OR CANALS CONSTRUCTED BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE UNITED
STATES AS RESERVED IN UNITED STATES PATENT RECORDED SEPTEMBER 02, 1927, IN BOOK 235 AT
PAGE 137.

9. TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN DEED
RECORDED SEPTEMBER 12, 1972 IN BOOK 443 AT PAGE 446 AND RELEASE OF OBLIGATIONS
RECORDED SEPTEMBER 22, 1978 IN BOOK 520 AT PAGE 743.

10. TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS, OBLIGATIONS AND EASEMENTS AS SET FORTH AND
GRANTED IN GRANT OF EASEMENT RECORDED JANUARY 18, 1994 IN BOOK 739 AT PAGE 121 AS
AMENDED BY INSTRUMENT RECORDED JUNE 27, 1995 IN BOOK 766 AT PAGE 156.

11. TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS, OBLIGATIONS AND EASEMENTS AS SET FORTH AND
GRANTED IN GRANT OF EASEMENT RECORDED MARCH 18, 1994 IN BOOK 742 AT PAGE 398.

12. TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS, OBLIGATIONS AND EASEMENTS AS SET FORTH AND
GRANTED IN GRANT OF EASEMENT RECORDED APRIL 08, 1994 IN BOOK 743 AT PAGE 469.

13. TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS, OBLIGATIONS AND EASEMENTS AS SET FORTH AND
GRANTED IN GRANT OF UTILITIES EASEMENT RECORDED MAY 17, 1994 IN BOOK 745 AT PAGE 598 AS
CORRECTED BY INSTRUMENT RECORDED JUNE 14, 1994 IN BOOK 747 AT PAGE 148.

ALTA COMMITMENT

Stewart Title Guaranty Company

Schedule B-2

(Exceptions)

Order Number: GUR88000227-9

The policy or policies to be issued will contain exceptions to the following unless the same are disposed of to the satisfaction of
the Company:

24 of 223

https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiMjM1IiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiMTM3IiwieWVhciI6MTkyNywiY291bnR5IjoiMDgwNTEifQ.07DOP8G5CRdja1g2zxYSvv_iqQa2VL754e6iGtLrV0c/Gunnison_1927_235/137.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNDQzIiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiNDQ2IiwieWVhciI6MTk3MiwiY291bnR5IjoiMDgwNTEifQ.RoXlCF9wStWRLV9K5gwDKClCQW5djYnTTZSTA__t0Ys/Gunnison_1972_443/446.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNTIwIiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiNzQzIiwieWVhciI6MTk3OCwiY291bnR5IjoiMDgwNTEifQ.QmQCL6nE1TeZJIYnyWjQwhBplSbUPB0X9gRf54SfT_o/Gunnison_1978_520/743.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNzM5IiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiMTIxIiwieWVhciI6MTk5NCwiY291bnR5IjoiMDgwNTEifQ.0oHuMXWbTjy8H7WfHN1vfLcE1jBGf6MgbTePlRPPdW4/Gunnison_1994_739/121.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNzY2IiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiMTU2IiwieWVhciI6MTk5NSwiY291bnR5IjoiMDgwNTEifQ.ZDithJb7IDKzqcA0Mh4KT51C8-mH1gymbWCbeOVKMUQ/Gunnison_1995_766/156.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNzQyIiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiMzk4IiwieWVhciI6MTk5NCwiY291bnR5IjoiMDgwNTEifQ.Z0eZ0eU_8b-_LI8K0AEU35ct3eq16Wwm1DHiAR15f2A/Gunnison_1994_742/398.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNzQzIiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiNDY5IiwieWVhciI6MTk5NCwiY291bnR5IjoiMDgwNTEifQ.8YzGhRIr73RUlGdRkf0UD3_e36btRYMalZmpspM5ABs/Gunnison_1994_743/469.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNzQ1IiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiNTk4IiwieWVhciI6MTk5NCwiY291bnR5IjoiMDgwNTEifQ.naDdTTJalNU4VxyqaJSeuP1lBBfqBbQh8gLigYGmnaE/Gunnison_1994_745/598.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNzQ3IiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiMTQ4IiwieWVhciI6MTk5NCwiY291bnR5IjoiMDgwNTEifQ.CNzPTPnVbSWU2wDTDDIK21ROO4Lu9cuelXy-BRGLvO4/Gunnison_1994_747/148.pdf


14. TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN INCLUSION ORDER IN THE MATTER OF THE
BOUNDARIES OF THE CRESTED BUTTE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT RECORDED NOVEMBER 21, 1994,
IN BOOK 756 AT PAGE 62 AS AMENDED BY INSTRUMENT RECORDED JANUARY 13, 1995 IN BOOK 758
AT PAGE 689.

15. TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS, OBLIGATIONS AND EASEMENTS AS SET FORTH AND
GRANTED IN UTILITY EASEMENT TO GUNNISON COUNTY ELECTRIC ASSOCIATION, INC. RECORDED
DECEMBER 16, 1994 IN BOOK 757 AT PAGE 319.

16. TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS, OBLIGATIONS AND EASEMENTS AS SET FORTH AND
GRANTED IN EASEMENT DEED RECORDED OCTOBER 14, 1998 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 487842.

17. EASEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY FOR HUNTER HILL ROAD AND OVERLOOK ROAD AS SHOWN ON THE
GUNNISON COUNTY ASSESSOR'S MAP STORED IN LAND TITLE'S SYSTEM AS ESI 33251221.

18. MATTERS DISCLOSED ON BOUNDARY AND EASEMENT SKETCH ISSUED BY NCW & ASSOCIATES, INC.
CERTIFIED JULY 17, 2017, JOB NO. 17111.00 
SAID DOCUMENT STORED AS OUR ESI 34871275.

ALTA COMMITMENT

Stewart Title Guaranty Company

Schedule B-2

(Exceptions)

Order Number: GUR88000227-9

The policy or policies to be issued will contain exceptions to the following unless the same are disposed of to the satisfaction of
the Company:

25 of 223

https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNzU2IiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiNjIiLCJ5ZWFyIjoxOTk0LCJjb3VudHkiOiIwODA1MSJ9.05xd4t85Wvi4dszSn3-3sOO5y44mYR--ryvxfYVZNyM/Gunnison_1994_756/62.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNzU4IiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiNjg5IiwieWVhciI6MTk5NSwiY291bnR5IjoiMDgwNTEifQ._GaxQ6iL5AFw7xm4TgYiB0NSV3_vkQxSFmxuXVGU3N8/Gunnison_1995_758/689.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjoiNzU3IiwicmVjZXB0aW9uIjpudWxsLCJwYWdlIjoiMzE5IiwieWVhciI6MTk5NCwiY291bnR5IjoiMDgwNTEifQ.ypHMAt_-nGtE3csYc0AwKj6CC-lIwkNziUPZbeq6QLU/Gunnison_1994_757/319.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/recorded_document/download/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJib29rIjpudWxsLCJyZWNlcHRpb24iOiI0ODc4NDIiLCJwYWdlIjpudWxsLCJ5ZWFyIjoxOTk4LCJjb3VudHkiOiIwODA1MSJ9.iGcQdSXgYi0i5mWsSrQMMHHnuXMlX3QWELjUCkuI2pE/Gunnison_1998_487842.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/athena/document/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJpZCI6Mzc2NzE4MH0.JXcHXu7hNqBwprqE-_yR1GqiuWSKf6gWyqpIS7w71jI/88000227_ARB_4761143.pdf
https://blueprint.ltgc.com/athena/document/eyJleHAiOjE1Nzc5OTAyODMuMCwiaWF0IjoxNTE0OTE4MjgzLCJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJpZCI6NjY5Njc1N30.Ze7ZEYzoHexTnbpfj6KWBBttmCWQ9kq0JJomZGNf88k/88000227_XILC_6470891.pdf


DISCLOSURES

Pursant to C.R.S. 10-11-122, notice is hereby given that:

Note: Colorado Division of Insurance Reglations 3-5-1, Subparagraph (7) (E) requires that "Every title entity shall be
responsible for all matters which appear of record prior to the time of recording whenever the title entity conducts the closing
and is responsible for recording or filing of legal documents resulting from the transaction which was closed." Provided that
Stewart Title - Crested Butte conducts the closing of the insured transaction and is responsible for recording the legal
documents from the transaction, exception number 5 will not appear on the Owner's Title Policy and the Lender's Title
Policy when issued.

Note: Affirmative Mechanic's Lien Protection for the Owner may be available (typically by deletion of Exception No. 4 of Schedule B, Section
2 of the Commitment from the Owner's Policy to be issued) upon compliance with the following conditions:

No coverage will be given under any circumstances for labor or material for which the Insured has contracted for or agreed
to pay.

To comply with the provisions of C.R.S. 10-11-123, the Company makes the following disclosure:

NOTE: THISE DISCLOSURE APPLIES ONLY IF SCHEDULE B, SECTION 2 OF THE TITLE COMMITMENT HEREIN INCLUDES AN
EXCEPTION SEVERED MINERALS.

NOTHING HEREIN CONTAINED WILL BE DEEMED TO OBLIGATE THE COMPANY TO PROVIDE ANY OF THE COVERAGES
REFERED TO HEREIN, UNLESS THE ABOVE CONDITIONS ARE FULY SATISFIED

THE SUBJECT REAL PROPERTY MAY BE LOCATED IN THE SPECIAL TAXING DISTRICT;(a)
A CERTIFICATE OF TAXES DUE LISTING EACH TAXING JURISDICTION SHALL BE OBTAINED FROM THE COUNTY
TREASURER OR THE COUNTY TREASURER'S AUTHORIZED AGENT;

(b)

INFORMATION REGARDING SPECIAL DISTRICTS AND THE BOUNDARIES OF SUCH DISTRICTS MAY BE OBTAINED FROM
THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, THE COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER, OR THE COUNTY ASSESSOR.

(c)

The land described in Schedule A of this commitment must be a single-family residence, which includes a condominium or townhouse
unit.

(a)

No labor or materials have been furnished by mechanic or materialment fur purposes of construction on the land described in
Schedule A of this Commitment within the past 6 months.

(b)

The Company must receive payment of the appropriate premium.(c)
If there has been construction, improvements or major repairs undertaken on the property to be purchased, within six months prior to
the Date of the Commitment, the requirements to obtain coverage for unrecorded liens will include: disclosure of certain construction
information; financial information as to the seller, the builder and/or the contractor; payment of the appropriate premium; fully executed
indemnity agreements satisfactory to the company; and, any additional requirements as may be necessary after an examination of
the aforesaid information by the Company.

(d)

That there is recorded evidence that a mineral estate has been severed, leased or otherwise conveyed from the surface estate and
that there is a substantial likelihood that athird party holds some or all interest in oil, gas, other minerals, or geothermal energy in the
property; and

(a)

That such mineral estate may include the right to enter and use the property without the surface owner's permission.(b)

26 of 223



STG Privacy Notice
Stewart Title Companies

WHAT DO THE STEWART TITLE COMPANIES DO WITH YOUR PERSONAL INFORMATION?

Federal and applicable state law and regulations give consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing. Federal and applicable state
law regulations also require us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Please read this notice carefully to
understand how we use your personal information. This privacy notice is distributed on behalf of the Stewart Title Guaranty Company and
its title affiliates (the Stewart Title Companies), pursuant to Title V of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (GLBA).

The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or service that you have sought through us. This information
can include social security numbers and driver's license number.

All financial companies, such as the Stewart Title Companies, need to share customers' personal information to run their everyday
business—to process transactions and maintain customer accounts. In the section below, we list the reasons that we can share
customers' personal information; the reasons that we choose to share; and whether you can limit this sharing.

Reason we can share your personal information. Do we share Can you limit this sharing?

For our everyday business purposes— to process your transactions and maintain your account.
This may include running the business and managing customer accounts, such as processing
transactions, mailing, and auditing services, and responding to court orders and legal investigations.

Yes No

For our marketing purposes— to offer our products and services to you. Yes No

For joint marketing with other financial companies No We don't share

For our affiliates' everyday business purposes— information about your transactions and
experiences. Affiliates are companies related by common ownership or control. They can be financial
and non-financial companies. Our affiliates may include companies with a Stewart name; financial
companies, such as Stewart Title Company

Yes No

For our affiliates' everyday business purposes— information about your creditworthiness. No We don't share

For our affiliates to market to you — For your convenience, Stewart has developed a means for
you to opt out from its affiliates marketing even though such mechanism is not legally required.

Yes

Yes, send your first and last name, the email
address used in your transaction, your
Stewart file number and the Stewart office
location that is handling your transaction by
email to optout@stewart.com or fax to 
1-800-335-9591.

For non-affiliates to market to you. Non-affiliates are companies not related by common ownership
or control. They can be financial and non-financial companies.

No We don't share

We may disclose your personal information to our affiliates or to non-affiliates as permitted by law. If you request a transaction with a non-
affiliate, such as a third party insurance company, we will disclose your personal information to that non-affiliate. [We do not control their
subsequent use of information, and suggest you refer to their privacy notices.]

SHARING PRACTICES

How often do the Stewart Title Companies notify me
about their practices?

We must notify you about our sharing practices when you request a transaction.

How do the Stewart Title Companies protect my
personal information?

To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we use security measures that
comply with federal law. These measures include computer, file, and building safeguards.

How do the Stewart Title Companies collect my
personal information?

We collect your personal information, for example, when you

request insurance-related services
provide such information to us

We also collect your personal information from others, such as the real estate agent or lender involved in
your transaction, credit reporting agencies, affiliates or other companies.

What sharing can I limit? Although federal and state law give you the right to limit sharing (e.g., opt out) in certain instances, we do not
share your personal information in those instances.

Contact us: If you have any questions about this privacy notice, please contact us at: Stewart Title Guaranty Company, 1980 Post
Oak Blvd., Privacy Officer, Houston, Texas 77056

27 of 223



Commitment for Title Insurance
Issued By

STEWART TITLE GUARANTY COMPANY

STEWART TITLE GUARANTY COMPANY, Texas Corporation (Company), for a valuable consideration, commits to issue
its policy or policies of title insurance, as identified in Schedule A, in favor of the Propsed Insured named in Schedule A, as
owner or mortgagee of the estate or interest in the land described or referred to in Schedule A, upon payment of the
premiums and charges and compliance with the requirements; all subject to the provisions of Schedule A and B and to the
Conditions of this Commitment.

This Commitment shall be effective only when the identity of the Proposed Insured and the amount of the policy or policies
committed for have been inserted in Schedule A by the Company.

All liability and obligation under this Commitment shall cease and terminate six (6) months after the Effective Date or when
the policy or policies committed for shall issue, whichever first occurs, provided that the failure to issue the policy or policies
is not the fault of the Company.

The Company will provide a sample of the policy form upon request.

This Commitment shall not be valid or binding until countersigned by a validating officer or authorized signatory.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Stewart Title Guaranty Company has caused its corporate name and seal to be affixed by its
duly authorized officers on the date shown in Schedule A.

stewart title
Issued by:
Land Title Guarantee Company
3033 East First Avenue Suite 600 
Denver, Colorado 80206
(303)321-1880

President

Stewart Title Guaranty Company

AMERICAN LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION ALTA COMMITMENT FORM Adopted 6-17-06
Copyright 2006-2018 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.

28 of 223



Conditions

1. The term "mortgage", when used herein, shall include deed of trust, trust deed, or other security instrument.

2. If the proposed Insured has or acquires actual knowledge of any defect, lien, encumbrance, adverse claim or other
matter affecting the estate or interest or mortgage thereon covered by this Commitment other than those shown in
Schedule B hereof, and shall fail to disclose such knowledge to Company in writing, the Company shall be relieved
from liability for any loss or damage resulting from any act of reliance hereon to the extent the Company is prejudiced
by failure to so disclose such knowledge. If the proposed Insured shall disclose such knowledge to the Company, or
if the Company otherwise acquires actual knowledge of any such defect, lien, encumbrance, adverse claim or other
matter, the Company at its option may amend Schedule B of this Commitment accordingly, but such amendment
shall not relieve the Company from liability previously incurred pursuant to paragraph 3 of these Conditions and
Stipulations.

3. Liability of the Company under this Commitment shall be only to the named proposed Insured and such parties
included under the definition of Insured in the form of policy or policies committed for and only for actual loss incurred
in reliance hereon in undertaking in good faith (a) to comply with the requirements hereof or (b) to eliminate
exceptions shown in Schedule B, or (c) to acquire or create the estate or interest or mortgage thereon covered by this
Commitment. In no event shall such liability exceed the amount stated in Schedule A for the policy or policies
committed for and such liability is subject to the insuring provisions and the Conditions and Stipulations and the
Exclusions from Coverage of the form of policy or policies committed for in favor of the proposed Insured which are
hereby incorporated by reference and are made a part of this Commitment except as expressly modified herein.

4. This commitment is a contract to issue one or more title insurance policies and is not an abstract of title or a report of
the condition of title. Any action or actions or rights of action that the proposed Insured may have or may bring against
the Company arising out of the status of the title to the estate or interest or the status of the mortgage thereon
covered by this Commitment must be based on and are subject to the provisions of this Commitment.

5. The policy to be issued contains an arbitration clause. All arbitrable matters when the Amount of Insurance is
$2,000,000 or less shall be arbitrated at the option of either the Company or the Insured as the exclusive remedy of
the parties. You may review a copy of the arbitration rules at www.alta.org.

All notices required to be given to the Company and any statement in writing required to be furnished the Company
shall be addressed to at P.O. Box 2029, Houston, Texas 77252.

AMERICAN LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION ALTA COMMITMENT FORM Adopted 6-17-06
Copyright 2006-2018 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.

29 of 223



30 of 223



VICINITY MAP

31 of 223



LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

VICINITY MAP

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

1. Safety Requirements: The Contractor shall have full and complete

responsibility for jobsite safety, and shall perform all work in full

conformance with all Federal, State, and local safety regulations.

2. Mt. Crested Butte Water and Sanitation District's and the Town of

Mt. Crested Butte Standards and Specifications: All construction

work shall be performed in conformance with the latest Mt. Crested

Butte Water and Sanitation District's and the Town of Mt. Crested

Butte Standards and Specifications.

3. Contractor Investigation: The Contractor shall familiarize himself

with local conditions and the specifications of the governing entities,

and shall examine the site, make such tests, and perform such

explorations as he deems necessary to evaluate all conditions on

site, in order to perform the work in accordance with the Contract

Documents for the Contract Price within the Contract Time.

4. Underground Utility Locates: The Contractor shall have full

responsibility to identify, locate, and protect all existing utilities lines,

and to repair any damage to utilities caused by Contractor's

operations. Contractor shall contact the Town of MT. Crested Butte,

the Utility Notification Center of Colorado (811), and individual utility

companies as needed, to locate existing underground utilities prior

to construction. The construction drawings show utilities that were

located for the site survey and represent the best information

available at the time, but may not be complete or current.

5. Hazardous Materials: In the event that the Contractor encounters

any hazardous materials on the site (including but not limited to

asbestos cement pipe), Contractor shall leave such materials

undisturbed and shall contact the Owner for directions regarding

disposal of said materials.

6. Conflicts: In the event of a conflict between project specifications

herein, the District's and the Town's specifications, the more

rigorous requirement shall apply.

7. Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan: Contractor shall prepare a

Stormwater Pollution Plan, obtain the requisite permit from the

Colorado Dept of Public Health & Environment, implement the plan,

perform regularly scheduled inspections of the site, compile the

required records, and manage stormwater control devices until

receipt of final payment from the Owner. Contractor shall promptly

deliver copies of the regular inspection reports to the Owner.

8. Pre Construction Conference: Contractor shall schedule a Pre

Construction Conference with the Owner, the MT. CRESTED Butte

Public Works Director (or their designee), the Owner's

Representative, and the Project Engineer prior to commencement

of work to establish lines of communication, quality assurance and

materials testing protocols, surveying requirements, schedules, and

to clarify any uncertainties about the intent and purpose of the

design.

9. Construction Surveying: Owner will provide construction staking for

pipelines, set at offsets satisfactory to the Contractor. Any stakes

lost during construction will be replaced at Contractor's expense,

including stakes needed for the Engineer to evaluate Contractor's

work.

10. Quality Control of the work is the Contractor's responsibility.

Contractor shall ensure that all structural fill and trench backfill is

compacted in conformance with project specifications.

11. Quality Assurance Testing to verify that the Contractor's work shall

follows the testing procedures outlined in the Mt. Crested Butte

Water and Sanitation District's specifications.  Contractor shall be

responsible to notify and coordinate testing times with the Owner,

the Owner's engineer and the District  prior to testing, and to ensure

that all necessary testing is accomplished as the work progresses.

Any work that is covered up without required testing shall be

uncovered and and tested at no expense to the Owner.

12. Density Testing Records: Contractor shall submit records of density

testing with each Pay Request, to verify compliance with

compaction and testing requirements for the work for which

payment is being requested.

13. Environmental Considerations: This site is near a developed

residential area. Contractor shall manage the work so as to prevent

wind blown dust from leaving the site, and shall manage access in

such a manner as to prevent tracking of dirt or mud onto adjoining

streets.

14. Notifications: Contractor shall notify the Town of Mt. Crested Butte

(349-6632) at least 72 hours prior to commencing construction,

initiating utility connections or work within public rights of way, or

other construction activity that may require the Town's oversight or

which may inconvenience local residents.

15. Owner's Representative: Contractor shall notify the designated

Owner's Representative at least 48 hours in advance to arrange for

quality assurance observation of the work. Any work undertaken

without according the Owner's Representative the opportunity to

observe the work while it is in progress shall be removed and

reconstructed by the Contractor at no additional expense to the

Owner.

16. Payment for Extra Work: A Change Order signed by the Owner is

required to qualify any extra work for extra payment. Any extra work

undertaken by the Contractor without having a Change Order

signed by the Owner shall be deemed to have been undertaken for

the Contractor's convenience, and shall not be eligible for extra

compensation.

17. Record Drawings: Contractor shall record all variations from the

design on "as-built" drawings showing the approval of variation,

locations and dimensions of any element of the project that is not

constructed as designed, and shall provide that information to the

Engineer prior to release of final payment.

18. Working Hours: All work must follow the construction operation

hours of 7:00am to 7:00 pm.

19. Pipeline extensions into existing streets shall conform to Mt.

Crested Butte regulations and specifications, including providing

traffic control, signage, barricades, and necessary measures for

pedestrian safety. Utility trenches within existing paved streets shall

be backfilled with flowfill.

NCW & Associates, Inc.

HUNTER RIDGE SUBDIVISION 
GUNNISON COUNTY, COLORADO

 WATER AND SEWER PLAN
PRELIMINARY

32 of 223



NCW & Associates, Inc.

HUNTER RIDGE SUBDIVISION 
GUNNISON COUNTY, COLORADO

 WATER AND SEWER PLAN
PRELIMINARY

PROFILE PROFILES

LOTS 5 AND 6 SANITARY SEWER PROFILE SEWER LINE REALIGNMENT PROFILE

EXISTING SEWER LINE PROFILE

33 of 223



34 of 223



35 of 223



36 of 223



REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING                    June 19, 2018 
MT CRESTED BUTTE, COLORADO                                            6:00 PM 

          COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

 

5:00PM – Work Session – Discussion regarding the Corner at Brush Creek 
 
6:00 PM – Public Hearing - Public Input on the Subdivision Sketch Plan Application of an 
Unnamed 10.28 Acre Parcel Located in the SW1/4 of the SE1/4 of Section 26, Township 13 
South, Range 86 West, County of Gunnison, State of Colorado, and also known as Hunter Ridge.  
 
Call to Order 
 
Roll Call  
 
Approval of the June 5, 2018 Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 
Reports 
 Manager’s Report  
 Department Head Reports 
 Town Council Reports 
 
CORRESPONDENCE -  
 
OLD BUSINESS –  
 
Discussion and Possible Consideration of a Conditional Use Application for the Mt. Crested 
Butte Maintenance Building to be Located on an Unnamed 1.10 Acre Parcel in the SW ¼ of the 
SW ¼, Section 13, Township 13 South, Range 86 West, Town of Mt. Crested Butte, County of 
Gunnison, State of Colorado – Todd Carroll 
 
Discussion and Possible Consideration of Ordinance No. 2, Series 2018 - An Ordinance Of The 
Town Council Of The Town Of Mt Crested Butte, Colorado, Approving A Final Plan 
Application To Rezone 3.319 Acres Located At 16, 18, 22, And 24 Treasury Rd (Inn Sites 4 & 5, 
Lots 1-2, And 3 Block D, And Lot 1 Block 1 Chalet Village Addition 1) From High Density 
Multiple Family, Low Density Multiple Family, And Single Family Residential To Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) As Submitted By Pearls Management, LLC And Amending The Official 
Zoning Map Of The Town To Designate The Zoning As PUD – Second Reading  - The 
application includes a vested property right of 5 years - Carlos Velado  
 
Discussion and Possible Consideration of Ordinance 3 Series 2018 an Ordinance of the Town 
Council of the Town of Mt. Crested Butte, Colorado Amending Ordinance No. 2, Series 1996, to 
Extend the Boundaries of the Downtown Development Authority Pursuant to C.R.S. 31-25-822 – 
Second Reading – Carlos Velado 
 
NEW BUSINESS – 
 
Discussion and Possible Consideration of a Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Mt. 
Crested Butte, Colorado, Consenting to the Calling of an Election by the Gunnison Valley 
Regional Housing Authority on November 6, 2018 – Jennifer Kermode 

1 37 of 223



REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING                    June 19, 2018 
MT CRESTED BUTTE, COLORADO                                            6:00 PM 

          COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

 

 
Discussion and Possible Consideration of a Cluster Agreement for Units C2 and C3, Three 
Seasons Condominiums – Todd Carroll 
 
Discussion and Possible Consideration of a Contract to Buy, Sell, and Develop Deed Restricted 
Housing in the Homestead Subdivision  
 
Discussion and Possible Consideration of a Planning Commission Recommendation on the 
Subdivision Sketch Plan of an Unnamed 10.28 Acre Parcel Located in the SW1/4 of the SE1/4 of 
Section 26, Township 13 South, Range 86 West, County of Gunnison, State of Colorado, and 
also known as Hunter Ridge – Carlos Velado 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – Citizens may make comments on items not scheduled on the agenda. 
Those commenting should state their name and physical address for the record. Comments are 
limited to five minutes. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
If you require any special accommodations in order to attend this meeting, please call the 
Town Hall at 349-6632 at least 48 hours in advance.  Public comment on these agenda items 
is encouraged. 

2 38 of 223



TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE, COLORADO 
 

NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE TOWN COUNCIL 

 
 
Please take notice that the Mt. Crested Butte Town Council will hold a public 
hearing on Tuesday, June 19, 2018 at 6:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, Mt. Crested Butte, Colorado. 
 
The purpose of the hearing is for public input on the subdivision sketch plan of an 
unnamed 10.28 acre parcel located in the SW1/4 SE1/4 of Section 26, Township 
13 South, Range 86 West, County of Gunnison, State of Colorado, and also known 
as Hunter Ridge.  
 
All interested persons are urged to attend.  Written comments are welcome and 
should be received at the Town Offices, PO Box 5800, Mt. Crested Butte, CO  
81225-5800, by fax to (970) 349-6326 or by email at 
toconnell@mtcrestedbuttecolorado.us by Thursday, June 14, 2018 at 5:00 PM, 
Mountain Time. 
 
The sketch plan application is available for viewing at Mt. Crested Butte Town Hall 
during regular business hours. For a digital version of the application please 
contact the Community Development Department at (970) 349-6632. 
 
Dated this 22nd day of May, 2018 
 
/s/ Tiffany O’Connell 
     Town Clerk 
 
 
(Published in the Crested Butte News May 25, 2018.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

If you require any special accommodations in order to attend this meeting, please call the Town Hall at 349-6632 at least 
48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

35 39 of 223

mailto:toconnell@mtcrestedbuttecolorado.us


Monday, April 9, 2018

Letter of Support

Hunter Ridge 

     Its not often that a decision to support a development is this easy to make. The Town 
of Mt. crested Butte does an amazing amount of great work for its residents on a very 
tight budget. When you consider supporting the Town you have to realize that 
developments like Hunter Ridge do just that by providing additional tax and permit 
revenue while having a minimum impact on the land and services by its low density.

     If you keep a broader vision for a better Town then this project goes a long way to 
accomplish that by filling in or “completing” the desired boundary as outlined in the 
publicly accepted Master Plan. 

     Thank you, William Buck, (2008-2014) Mayor Mt. Crested Butte

�1
40 40 of 223



1

Carlos Velado

From: David Clayton <claytondl52@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 8, 2018 8:57 PM
To: Carlos Velado
Cc: Jamie Watt
Subject: Letter in Support of the Annexation and Subdivision - Hunter Ridge Parcel

Dear Mr. Velado, 
 
I am writing to express my support for the Annexation and Subdivision applications that are in front of the Town of Mt 
Crested Butte for the Hunter Ridge parcel that has been submitted by Hunter Ridge LLC. 
 
On the matter of annexation, the parcel could be developed either as a subdivision within the Town of Mt Crested Butte 
or remaining as a part of unincorporated Gunnison County.  The access to the property will be via the extension of roads 
that are solely within the Town of Mt Crested Butte and the parcel as adjacent and adjoining to the boundaries of the 
Town.  Therefore it only makes sense that the parcel should be annexed into the Town so that the parcel is under the 
control of Town Codes and that the Town be able to collect any fees and taxes that would be collectible if the parcel was 
annexed.  I recommend this action since it will allow the Town to have total control in the zoning, planning and design 
approval of units that will be built within the parcel. 
 
On the matter of subdivision, I recommend that a subdivision for the parcel be approved with the appropriate review of 
topology, geography as well as other factors in the subdivision process.  The level of development as 7 single family lots 
is of modest impact to the neighborhood with regards to traffic.  The fact that the development and maintenance of 
roads will not be the responsibility of the Town but of the future Homeowner’s Association further decreases the 
negative financial impacts to the Town while providing a stream of income from property taxes.  I do understand that 
there will be a higher level of traffic during initial parcel development and again as each lot is developed but with only 
seven lots, even this impact will be minimal.  Further the proposed subdivision plan as single family homes is a lower 
density than most of the lots that have been developed within the neighborhood adjacent to this proposed subdivision. 
 
There is always risk in the success of any real estate development, but I do not believe that the Town should stand in 
judgement but only review and maximize the safeguards to assure neighbors and the Town that the project will be 
completed. 
 
Therefore, I support the proposed annexation and subdivision of the Hunter Ridge parcl 
 
David Clayton 
139 Snowmass Road 
Mt Crested Butte, CO  
970-349-0313 
 

42 41 of 223



1

Carlos Velado

From: Alpine Construction <alpinewatt@hotmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 2, 2018 3:20 PM
To: Carlos Velado
Subject: Fw: Hunter Ridge

From Wendy Fisher 
 
Jamie Watt 
Crested Butte Resort Real Estate 
Alpine Construction 
PO Box 1935 
Crested Butte, CO 81224 
 
C-970-209-2675 
 

From: Wendy Fisher <fishski@me.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 2, 2018 1:19 PM 
To: Joe Fitzpatrick 
Cc: Jamie Watt 
Subject: Hunter Ridge  
  
Hi Joe,  
 
I hope you are well.  
 
I emailed you early April, regarding the Hunter Ridge parcel. The email may have sounded more like an inquire 
than showing support for Jamie Watt’s project.  
 
If what Jamie told me is accurate, then it seems to make sense to me that the town jump at the opportunity of 
a developer wanting to do a low-density development on this particular parcel. I would think it should be in 
the interest of Mt. Crested Butte residences to have this parcel annexed into the Mt. Crested Butte's master 
plan. This way the vision of the town is in the hands of Mt. Crested Butte rather than the County.  
 
I hope it goes well and please let me know if there is anything else you need from me to show my support. 
 
All my best, 
 
Wendy Fisher 
 
Olympian 
Crested Butte Mountain Resort Ambassador 
970.209.0256 
www.fishski.com 

46 42 of 223



1

Carlos Velado

From: Gary Keiser <keiserhaus@aol.com>
Sent: Friday, May 11, 2018 7:01 AM
To: Carlos Velado
Cc: Jamie Watt
Subject: Annexation

Carlos 
I think that 7 single family lots is very reasonable and would be good for the Town. 
Gary Keiser 

Sent from my iPad 

70 43 of 223



1

Carlos Velado

From: Chris Morgan <cmorgan@crestedbutte.net>
Sent: Monday, May 7, 2018 2:43 PM
To: Carlos Velado
Subject: Hunter Ridge

I am writing the Mt. Crested Butte town council on the issue of the Hunter Ridge potential annexation. 
 
When I was on council years ago this parcel was identified as desirable for annexation.  It meets the conditions of 
continuity and fits within town nicely.  The proposed density is similar to the density of Castle road and Overlook.  Third, 
the town would maintain the authority to control density and access to the property instead of the county.  I would 
rather the Mt CB council control the use of that land instead of the county whose planning office is 30 miles away and 
they are not as familiar with our town and residents. 
 
Of course the council must consider and resolve some issues.  One of these is access to the property.  I do not have an 
opinion on this issue - I will have to allow the elected and appointed bodies, as well as our town staff, make that 
determination assuming annexation happens.  Second, the town must make sure the annexation produces some 
positive revenue for the town and that road maintenance and other issues are not subsidized by other taxpayers.  Third, 
the area may be geologically unstable.  If you remember we had a significant earth slide in a nearby area years ago.  I am 
sure that the town is looking at this issue and resolution would be achieved before annexation would be considered. 
 
In general, this piece of property deserves serious consideration for annexation. 
 
Chris Morgan 
Mt Crested Butte 
 
Sent from my iPad 

72 44 of 223



OOvveerrllooookk  
AAtt  mmtt..  CCrreesstteedd  BBuuttttee  
OOwwnneerrss  aassssoocciiaattiioonn 

 
 
 
 
May 21, 2018 
 
 
Town of Mt. Crested Butte 
Attn.. Town Council 
Mt. Crested Butte CO 812255 
 
 
 
Dear Town Council Members, 
 
The Board of Directors of the Overlook at Mt Crested Butte Owners Association is in support of 
Alpine Construction’s proposed Hunter Ridge annexation and sub division in Mt Crested Butte. 
 
While we feel the proposal decreases density from duplexes to single family dwellings, and the 
access from Castle Road is an improved design; we have not polled our home owners .  We will 
inform the homeowners of the proposal and encourage their input directly to the city council, and 
will discuss at our annual meeting in August.  
 
Thank you for your consideration.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Robert Takacs 
President, Board of Director’s 
Overlook at Mt Crested Butte Owners Association 

76 45 of 223



85 46 of 223



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Town of MT. CRESTED BUTTE  

P.O. Box 5800 

Mt Crested Butte, CO  81225 

(970) 349-6632       Fax: (970) 349-6326 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

 
Date:        June 14, 2018    

 

To:              Town Council  

           

From:          Mt Crested Butte Planning Commission  

 

Subject:        Hunter Ridge Subdivision Sketch Plan 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Hunter Ridge, LLC has submitted a subdivision plan application to subdivide a 10.28 acre parcel 

that currently sits in Gunnison County. The subject parcel runs along the south side of Hunter Hill Rd just 

past 33 Hunter Hill Rd. It also sits across from the 2 acre Hillside Parcel which was annexed by the Town in 

2014.  The property has a pending annexation application with the Town. As part of the annexation 

process, the Town has required the applicant to go through the subdivision process prior to consideration 

for annexation. The proposed subdivision would be accessed from Castle Rd and would have a feeder road 

that would serve 7 lots, with an average size of .8 acres, that would be zoned Single Family Residential. The 

remaining 4.63 acres would remain open space as they sit in an avalanche zone. A public hearing for 

subdivision sketch plan consideration has been scheduled for May 16, 2018. All public comment received 

since the eligibility hearing and by the June 14 deadline have been included with your packet. Please note 

that some letters only address the annexation application. The Town Council  is only considering the 

subdivision sketch plan. The applicant held a pre-application conference with the Planning Commission on 

May 2, 2018. 

Historical Background of the Property 

In the past 15 years, the parcel (with a different applicant) has applied to the Town for annexation 

on 2 separate occasions.  Both applications included an additional 2 acre parcel now known as the Hillside 

Parcel that was annexed into the Town in 2014. The proposed name of the development was Inspiration 

Ridge/Point. The applicant was pursuing zoning and subdivision approval during the annexation process. 

The initial application in 2003 proposed 15 lots on the approximately 13.92 acre tracts. They were 

requesting a zoning of Low Density Multiple Family for the 15 lots which were intended to house 2 

units/lot. The parcels received Town Council approval (Resolution No. 2 Series 2003) for eligibility for 

89 47 of 223



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

annexation but the application was subsequently withdrawn after receiving a recommendation of denial 

from the Planning Commission on the Subdivision Sketch Plan application. 

The same applicant submitted a second application for the same 2 parcels in 2006. The applicant 

was only seeking annexation and zoning of single family residential. The parcels received Town Council 

approval (Resolution No. 7 Series 2007) for eligibility of annexation but the application was subsequently 

withdrawn during the economic downturn. No application for subdivision was submitted. 

 
Master Plans and 3 Mile Plan 
  The Town of Mt Crested Butte 3 Mile Plan (1998) and 2001 Master Plan specifically describe the 

13 acre Inspiration Ridge Parcel as a preferred area of growth and annexation. The 2007 Community Plan 

(Update of 2001 Master Plan) states that “new annexation areas (not currently within the Town boundaries) 

should be limited and should only be considered if there is a clear public benefit.” The Section specifically 

describing preferred areas of growth was removed from the 2007 Community Plan.  The Inspiration Ridge 

parcel is mentioned in Tables B (Projected Units and Population Buildout) and E (Potential Community 

Housing Units). The 2007 Community Plan also contains The Mt Crested Butte Future Land Use Map which 

includes the Hunter Ridge parcel with a classification of single family use. Staff has also performed an 

economic impact report for the proposed subdivision which is included with the packet. 

 

Suggested Points of Discussion 

Access- The applicant is proposing to access the 7 single family zoned lots via the end of Castle Rd 

at the cul-du-sac. Previous applications were proposed to be accessed from Overlook Dr. The applicant 

apparently has a deal in place with the owners from the Snowcastle Condo Association to purchase a piece 

of land that would allow for this access. The access from Castle Rd would be provided by a feeder road. A 

feeder road is a private driveway that serves 3 or more units. The Town has specific requirements for feeder 

roads that would have to be met. The applicant has provided a cross section of the proposed feeder road. 

Soils and Slope- A geotechnical study has been performed for the site and is included with your 

packet. Staff has reviewed the report and compared to other reports for other subdivisions. Staff has found 

that the submitted report of Hunter Ridge to less comprehensive then those for other subdivisions. The 

applicant has also provided a preliminary analysis of a driveway for one of the proposed lots. The analysis 

was done for lot 3 which, in the opinion of the engineer, was the most difficult of the proposed lots to 

provide access to.  

Community Housing – The subdivision will trigger both inclusionary and mitigation 

requirements for affordable housing. Assuming 7 single family units, with the finished units being 4,500 sf 

or greater, the project would require 1.69 affordable units (1.05 inclusionary + .64 mitigation). The Town 

90 48 of 223



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Council should discuss how the applicant may meet these requirements. The options are providing the 

units, payment in lieu, or a combination of the 2.  

Building Square Footage – The applicant is proposing 7 lots that are to be zoned single family 

residential. Five of the lots are a proposed to be .75 acres in size. By zoning, this would allow a home up to 

8,167 sf on each lot. The remaining 2 lots are .85 and 1.05 acres and would allow homes up to 9,256 sf and 

11,434 sf respectively. The allowable building square footage is directly proportional to the size of the lot 

with 25% of the lot size being the maximum allowable square footage.  

Subdivision Consideration Procedure 

Subdivision consideration is a five step process detailed as follows: 

1)  Planning Commission public hearing and possible recommendation to the Town Council on a sketch 

plan application pursuant to Sec. 18-382 of the Town Code. (May 16, 2018) 

2)  Town Council public hearing and possible consideration of sketch plan approval pursuant to Sec. 18-382 

of the Town Code. 

3) Planning Commission public hearing and possible recommendation to the Town Council on a 

preliminary plan application pursuant to Secs. 18-397 and 18-398 of the Town Code. 

4)  Town Council public hearing and possible consideration of preliminary plan approval pursuant to Secs. 

18-397 and 18-398 of the Town Code. 

5) Town Council final plan consideration pursuant to Secs. 18-412 and 18-413 of the Town Code. 

Sketch Plan Consideration 

The applicant has submitted all information required pursuant to Sec. 18-382 on the sketch plan 

map and narrative that have been provided to you. The Town Council  may ask for additional information 

which may aid in the proper evaluation of the proposed subdivision prior to consideration of the sketch plan 

application.   

Planning Commission Recommendation  

The Planning Commission unanimously (4-0) passed a motion to recommend approval of the sketch plan 

application to the Town Council for the project known as Hunter Ridge submitted by Hunter Ridge LLC 

with the following conditions: 

1. More detailed soils analysis and foundation recommendations be provided at consideration of 

preliminary plan 

2. The ownership and uses of the spaces below the feeder road be detailed on the plat provided at 

preliminary plan 

3. The access agreement from Snowcastle Condos included in the preliminary plan 

 

Proposed Motion 

I move to approve/deny the Town Council of the subdivision sketch plan for the Hillside Parcel. 

 The Town Council may also continue the discussion. 

91 49 of 223



92 50 of 223

CarlosV
Line




93 51 of 223



94 52 of 223



95 53 of 223



96 54 of 223

CarlosV
Line




97 55 of 223



.BTUFS�1MBO�����

98 56 of 223



��.JMF�1MBO�����

99 57 of 223



Alpine___________ 
     Construction 
 
 

 

June 19, 2018 

 

Mt CB Town Council 

 

Re: Sketch Plan for Hunter Ridge 

 

I am proposing to annex into the Town of Mt Crested Butte the 10.28-

acre parcel of land located at 45 Hunter Hill Rd. This piece of 

property has a unique relationship to the town of Mt. Crested Butte 

as it is one of only two properties specifically referred to in both 

the Town’s 1998 3-mile Plan and the Town’s 2002 Master Plan as 
“Preferred Areas for Growth”. The property was given this 
designation by past Planning Commissions and Town Councils because 

it was the “missing piece of the puzzle” that prevented the Town 
from having a clean boundary with the County. When traveling along 

Hunter Hill Road you actually left the Town, entered the County and 

then came back into Town.  

 

There have been other proposals for this property brought before the 

Town over the years but none have been successful for various 

reasons. One proposal for the 10.28-acre portion was for 11 duplex 

lots with an access drive coming off of Overlook Drive but the 

Planning Commission rejected this. With this in mind I decided to 

minimize density as much as possible by proposing the subdivision to 

be only 7 single-family lots, which is less dense than the recently 

annexed 2-acre Hillside Parcel that borders this property. 

 

This lot at first has the appearance of being very steep. Close 

examination of the contour lines on the preliminary plat and 

actually walking the property will show that there is a plateau 

where the home sites would be situated. This slope is actually 

comparable to developed property bordering this land and other sites 

over all of Town. 

 

For access I am proposing a simple paved common drive coming off of 

Castle Road. This access point allows for a drive that follows the 

contour of the land to minimize disturbance with no need for 

retaining walls. The only other access choice would be from Overlook 

Drive but this would require huge unsightly engineered retaining 

walls. 

 

Jamie Watt 

104 58 of 223



Managing Partner for Hunter Ridge, LLC. 

105 59 of 223



106 60 of 223



Sketch Plan 
Sec. 18-382 requirements 

1. On plat
2. On plat
3. On plat
4. On plat
5. On plat
6. One filing
7. Enclosed
8. On plat
9. Property owner:

Hunter Ridge, LLC . PO Box 1935 Crested Butte, CO  81224
Shanon Phillips 100% share owner

Subdivider: 
Jamie Watt /Alpine Construction PO Box 1935 Crested Butte, CO 81224 

Surveyor: 
On plat 

10. On plat
11. On plat
12. N/A
13. On plat
14. On plat
15. On plat
16. On plat
17. On plat
18. None prepared for this location from Dept. of Agriculture
19. Enclosed
20. Mt. CB water line available from Hunter Hill Rd.
21. Mt CB sewer line available along lower boundary of lots
22. N/A
23. Will be on pickup route of Waste Management
24. As needed
25. On plat

107 61 of 223



108 62 of 223



BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SW¼ SE¼ OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 86
WEST, 6TH P.M., MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SE 1/16TH CORNER OF SAID SECTION 26;
THENCE SOUTH 89°36'06" WEST A DISTANCE OF 735.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID
SW¼ SE¼;
THENCE SOUTH 1°46'06" WEST A DISTANCE OF 370.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 39°43'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 434.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 50°28'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 429.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 24°53'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 180.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 58°48'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 127.07 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST BOUNDARY OF
SAID SW¼ SE¼;
THENCE NORTH 02°11'48" WEST ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY A DISTANCE OF 1211.64 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING;

LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND AS CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION IN THE DEED RECORDED AUGUST 28, 1972 IN BOOK 443
AT PAGE 74;

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION BY DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 25, 1974 IN BOOK 465
AT PAGE 427 AND IN DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 26, 1974 IN BOOK 465 AT PAGE 429,

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TWO TRACTS OF LAND CONVEYED TO MLJ REAL ESTATE, LP BY
WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JULY 15, 2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627782 AND RERECORDED JULY 28,
2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627999,

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE,
BEING A PORTION OF HUNTER HILL ROAD, IN BARGAIN AND SALE DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 24, 2014
UNDER RECEPTION NO. 625652.

COUNTY OF GUNNISON,
STATE OF COLORADO.

NOTES:

1. TOTAL BOUNDARY LENGTH OF PROPOSED ANNEXATION = 3,396.96'

2. BOUNDARY LENGTH CONTIGUOUS WITH THE TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE:
     535.47' + 510.79' = 1,046.26' (1.85 SIXTHS)

VICINITY MAP

134 63 of 223



VICINITY MAP

NOTES:

1. ALL LOTS ARE PROPOSED TO BE ZONED SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL AND SHALL BE
SUBJECT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER 21, ARTICLE III, DIVISION 2 OF THE CODE OF
THE TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE, COLORADO.
2. THE OPEN SPACE IS PROPOSED TO BE ZONED AS OPEN SPACE.

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SW¼ SE¼ OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 86
WEST, 6TH P.M., MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SE 1/16TH CORNER OF SAID SECTION 26; THENCE SOUTH 89°36'06" WEST A
DISTANCE OF 735.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SW¼ SE¼; THENCE SOUTH 1°46'06"
WEST A DISTANCE OF 370.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 39°43'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 434.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 50°28'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 429.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 24°53'54" EAST A DISTANCE
OF 180.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 58°48'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 127.07 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST
BOUNDARY OF SAID SW¼ SE¼;  THENCE NORTH 02°11'48" WEST ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY A
DISTANCE OF 1211.64 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND AS CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION IN THE DEED RECORDED AUGUST 28, 1972 IN BOOK 443
AT PAGE 74;

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION BY DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 25, 1974 IN BOOK 465
AT PAGE 427 AND IN DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 26, 1974 IN BOOK 465 AT PAGE 429,

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TWO TRACTS OF LAND CONVEYED TO MLJ REAL ESTATE, LP BY
WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JULY 15, 2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627782 AND RERECORDED JULY 28,
2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627999,

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE,
BEING A PORTION OF HUNTER HILL ROAD, IN BARGAIN AND SALE DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 24, 2014
UNDER RECEPTION NO. 625652.

COUNTY OF GUNNISON,
STATE OF COLORADO.

135 64 of 223



BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SW¼ SE¼ OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 86
WEST, 6TH P.M., MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SE 1/16TH CORNER OF SAID SECTION 26;
THENCE SOUTH 89°36'06" WEST A DISTANCE OF 735.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID
SW¼ SE¼;
THENCE SOUTH 1°46'06" WEST A DISTANCE OF 370.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 39°43'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 434.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 50°28'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 429.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 24°53'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 180.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 58°48'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 127.07 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST BOUNDARY OF
SAID SW¼ SE¼;
THENCE NORTH 02°11'48" WEST ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY A DISTANCE OF 1211.64 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING;

LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND AS CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION IN THE DEED RECORDED AUGUST 28, 1972 IN BOOK 443
AT PAGE 74;

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION BY DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 25, 1974 IN BOOK 465
AT PAGE 427 AND IN DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 26, 1974 IN BOOK 465 AT PAGE 429,

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TWO TRACTS OF LAND CONVEYED TO MLJ REAL ESTATE, LP BY
WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JULY 15, 2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627782 AND RERECORDED JULY 28,
2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627999,

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE,
BEING A PORTION OF HUNTER HILL ROAD, IN BARGAIN AND SALE DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 24, 2014
UNDER RECEPTION NO. 625652.

COUNTY OF GUNNISON,
STATE OF COLORADO.

VICINITY MAP

NOTES:

1. ALL LOTS ARE PROPOSED TO BE ZONED SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL AND SHALL BE
SUBJECT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER 21, ARTICLE III, DIVISION 2 OF THE CODE OF
THE TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE, COLORADO.
2. THE OPEN SPACE IS PROPOSED TO BE ZONED AS OPEN SPACE.

136 65 of 223



NOTES:

1. CONTOUR INTERVAL = 2'

137 66 of 223



 

 

October 16, 2017 

 

Town of Mt. Crested Butte 
911 Gothic Road 
PO Box 5800 
Mt. Crested Butte, CO 81225 
 

To Whom it May Concern: 

The Gunnison Watershed School District believes that the potential annexation of a 10+ acre parcel to 
Mt. Crested Butte for the purpose adding no more than nine single family lots may generate an 
additional five students attending the Crested Butte Community School, and have a very minimal capital 
construction requirement to educate such students. 

Please let me know if you have any further questions. 

Sincerely, 

 

Stephanie Juneau 
Business Manager 

139 67 of 223



140 68 of 223



141 69 of 223



142 70 of 223



143 71 of 223



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Town of Mt. Crested Butte  
P.O. Box 5800 

Mt Crested Butte, CO  81225 
(970) 349-6632       Fax:  (970) 349-6326 

 

Memorandum 
 
Date:  February 15, 2018   
 
To:  Mt Crested Butte Town Council  
           
From:  Carlos Velado, Community Development Director 
 
Subject:  Hunter Ridge Economic Impact Report 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

I have done my best to prepare an economic impact report for the proposed Hunter Ridge 

Annexation. My estimations are as follows: 

Development Fees 

Development fees could also be considered building permit fees. For this exercised I assumed 7 

homes at 5,000 sf/home with a building valuation of $1,250,500 ($250/square foot) with a materials 

valuation of 50% of the total valuation for determination of use tax. Development fees are to be considered 

fees that are paid only once in order to construct the homes and are paid prior to construction of each 

individual home. Based on these assumptions the total development fees collected for 7 single family homes 

breaks down as follows: 

Permit Fees: $45,648.75 

Plan Check Fees: $29,671.67 

Use Tax: $131,250.00 

Town Impact Fees: $10,094.00 

CBFPD: $2,721.53 (paid to CBPFD) 

Total: $219,385.95 

Mt Crested Butte Water and Sanitation District Fees 

 The Mt Crested Butte Water and Sanitation District would collect tap fees as part of any new 

construction project. Tap fees are based on the square footage of the floor area, plus any additional toilet, 

tub/shower, kitchen, hot tub, etc. Tap fees are used by the District to fund capital projects required by the 

District. Tap fees shall be considered a fee that is only collected once, prior to construction, unless an 

addition or remodel that has additional fixtures is added to the existing home. For the purpose of this 

exercise I used the tap fee cost of a home currently under construction in Prospect. The Project is located at 

18 Kokanee Dr. and is a 5 bedroom and 4.5 bath home this is 4,263 sf. 

101 72 of 223



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

The tap fee for 7 new homes based on 2017 calculations would break down as follows: 

Per house: $62,355.24 

Total $436,486.68 total 

Ad Valorum Taxes 

Gunnison County annually collects property taxes on privately held land (developed and undeveloped). 

Their calculations are based on the County s assessed value of the land. The Town collects 10.378% of the taxes 

collected by the County. Taxes collected vary from year to year. For the purposes of this exercise I used the 2017 tax 

rate for 2 similar properties in vicinity of the proposed annexation, one developed one undeveloped. The 

undeveloped property is a .78 acres parcel in the adjacent Overlook Subdivision (lot 15). The developed lot is a 

6,354 sf home that sits on a .73 acre parcel in the Summit Subdivision (lot 2). The collected property taxes break 

down as follows: 

Developed Lot: 

Assessed Valuation: $148,700 Taxes Collected County: $12,051.53  Taxes Collected Town: $1,250.70/yr. 

Undeveloped Lot: 

Assessed Valuation: $52,930 Taxes Collect County $4,289.76 Taxes Collect Town: $445.19 

Total Collected By Town: Undeveloped $3,116.33/yr. for 7 Units  

   Developed $8,754.90/yr. for 7 Units 

Community Housing 

If annexed and subdivided the development of the subdivision would require satisfaction of the 

Town s Community Housing requirements for both Employee Housing Mitigation and Inclusionary 

Zoning. The applicant would have the option to build the required affordable housing, or make a payment 

in lieu of building the housing, or a combination of the two. The fees required for affordable housing are 

adjusted annually. Construction of any community housing units would need to be negotiated as part of the 

Annexation Agreement. Employee Housing Mitigation payment in lieu is typically paid at building permit 

application prior to construction. I will assume that Inclusionary Zoning will be paid by the developer up 

front as part of the annexation agreement. Community Housing payments shall be considered a one-time 

payment that is paid prior to construction. The development of 7 single family residences at 5,000 sf would 

trigger the requirement for .  units under Employee Housing Mitigation and 1.05 units under 

inclusionary zoning. For the purposes of this exercise I used the Town s 2017 Community Housing 

Calculations. The collected fees in lieu for 7 single family homes collected breaks down as follows: 

Employee Housing Mitigation: $69,121.92 (9,874.56/unit developed) 

Inclusionary Zoning: $137,212.95 

Total: $206,334.87 

102 73 of 223



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Sales and Lodging Tax 

 Development of the land would create a sales tax increase. People staying or living in the homes 

would presumably purchase goods and service within the Town limits. Lodging and Sales taxes could also 

be generated depending on if the properties were rented as short-term rentals. The actual monies generated 

under these scenarios is difficult to quantify. 

Town Impacts 

 The conceptual land use plan does not impose any additional costs to the Town for maintenance or 

infrastructure. There would be additional impacts from increased traffic. The Town feels that the traffic 

impacts of 7 additional single family lots would be minimal. Hunter Hill and Castle Rds. are both on bus 

routes and are thus high priority roads in terms of maintenance. The town inspects and evaluates the 

conditions of all our roads annually. 

 

103 74 of 223



75 of 223



76 of 223



77 of 223



78 of 223



79 of 223



80 of 223



81 of 223



82 of 223



83 of 223



84 of 223



85 of 223



86 of 223



87 of 223



88 of 223



89 of 223



90 of 223



91 of 223



92 of 223



93 of 223



94 of 223



95 of 223



96 of 223



97 of 223



98 of 223



99 of 223



100 of 223



101 of 223



102 of 223



103 of 223



104 of 223



105 of 223



106 of 223



107 of 223



108 of 223



109 of 223



110 of 223



111 of 223



112 of 223



113 of 223



114 of 223



115 of 223



116 of 223



117 of 223



118 of 223



119 of 223



120 of 223



121 of 223



122 of 223



123 of 223



124 of 223



125 of 223



OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO 

CERTIFICATE OF FACT OF GOOD STANDING 

I, Jena Griswold  , as the Secretary of State of the State of Colorado, hereby certify that, according to the 
records of this office, 

is a 

formed or registered on   under the law of Colorado, has complied with all applicable 
requirements of this office, and is in good standing with this office.  This entity has been assigned entity 
identification number   . 

This certificate reflects facts established or disclosed by documents delivered to this office on paper through 
 that have been posted, and by documents delivered to this office electronically through 
 @   . 

I have affixed hereto the Great Seal of the State of Colorado and duly generated, executed, and issued this 
official certificate at Denver, Colorado on   @    in accordance with applicable law. 
This certificate is assigned Confirmation Number  . 

*********************************************End of Certificate******************************************* 
Notice: A certificate issued electronically from the Colorado Secretary of State’s Web site is fully and immediately valid and effective. 
However, as an option, the issuance and validity of a certificate obtained electronically may be established by visiting the Validate a 
Certificate page of the Secretary of State’s Web site, http://www.sos.state.co.us/biz/CertificateSearchCriteria.do entering the certificate’s 
confirmation number displayed on the certificate, and following the instructions displayed. Confirming the issuance of a certificate is merely 
optional and is not necessary to the valid and effective issuance of a certificate. For more information, visit our Web site, http://
www.sos.state.co.us/ click “Businesses, trademarks, trade names” and select “Frequently Asked Questions.” 

Hunter Ridge, LLC

Limited Liability Company

20171544934

04/03/2020
04/06/2020 13:37:46

04/06/2020 13:37:46
12203371

07/20/2017

126 of 223



Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation District 
Petition for Inclusion Cost Reimbursement Agreement 

This Cost Reimbursement Agreement (this "Agreement") is entered into as of this l�� 
day of tf)ff 'f , 2020, by and between Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation District

_(the "District"), on the one hand, and Hunter Ridge, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company 

(the "Petitioner"), on the other hand. Each of the foregoing parties is sometimes referred to as a 

"Party" and collectively as the "Parties." 

Recitals 

A. Petitioner has submitted a Petition for Inclusion to the District;

B. Pursuant to section 6.12.2 of the District's Rules and Regulations, Petitioner has agreed

to pay all costs, fees, and expenses incurred by the District in reviewing the Petition for Inclusion 

and pertaining to the inclusion proceedings; 

C. Pursuant to section 6.12.2 of the District's Rules and Regulations, Petitioner is required

to deposit funds with the District for the payment of costs, fees, and expenses for engineering, 

hydrology, legal, and administrative expenses incurred by the District in-the inclusion 

proceedings; 

D. Within ten (10) days of the date of this Agreement, the District shall provide to Petitioner

a budget or cost estimate for the inclusion proceedings for Petitioner's review and approval, and 

shall provide updates if these estimated numbers change for Petitioner's review and approval. 

However, Petitioner pnderstands and acknowledges that the estimate to be provided pursuant to 

this Recital D is not a guarantee of the maximum amount Petitioner may be obligated to 

reimburse the District pursuant to the tenns and conditions of this Agreement. Accordingly, 

notwithstanding such estimate, Petitioner shall be responsible for reimbursing the District for all 

costs the District incurs with respect to the inclusion process. 

E. This Agreement provides for the deposit of funds by the Petitioner in a manner that

allows the District to diligently pursue inclusion proceedings without interruption due to lack of 

funds; 

Agreement 

1 

127 of 223



NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the mutual promises, 

covenants and agreements set forth herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Initial Deposit. Concurrent with the submission of a fully executed petition for

inclusion, the Petitioner shall remit to the Manager an Initial Deposit in the amount of 

·$10,000.00, to pay for all costs associated with the processing of the inclusion. The Initial

Deposit shall be nonrefundable under all circumstances. All costs, specifically including, but not

limited to, engineering, hydrology, legal, and administrative costs and fees shall be applied to the

Initial Deposit.

2. Incremental Refundable Deposits. When the amount of the Initial Deposit falls below

$2,000.00, the Manager shall notify the Petitioner in writing and request that an Incremental 

Refundable Deposit in the amount of $5,000.00 be remitted to the District. All work on the 

inclusion shall continue until the Initial Deposit is exhausted. In the event an Incremental 

Refundable Deposit is not received by the Manager by the time the Initial Deposit is exhausted, 

the District's consultants, including legal, hydrological, administrative, and engineering, shall 

cease all work until an Incremental Refundable Deposit is remitted to th� Manager, at which time 

work shall resume. When the amount of any Incremental Refundable Deposit falls below 

$2,000.00, the Manager shall proceed in the same manner as set forth above for obtaining 

additional Incremental Refundable Deposits. 

3. Unused Funds. Upon completion of the inclusion process any unused portions of the

Incremental Refundable Deposit shall be refunded to the Petitioner. 

4. Miscellaneous.

(a) This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties

and the Parties' respective heirs, agents, successors, and assigns; 

(b) If any Party is required to take any action to enforce trus Agreement, the

prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover all reasonable attorneys' fees and costs from the non

prevailing Party or Parties; 

(c) The paragraph headings used in this Agreement are for purposes of identification

only and shall not be considered in construing this Agreement. Furthermore, this Agreement 

2 

128 of 223



shall be deemed to have been prepared with the full and equal part:1c1pat:ton ot each .!:'arty, and 

shall not be construed by any Party against any other Party; 

(d) This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of

the State of Colorado, and the Parties agree that the state courts located in Gunnison, Colorado 

shall have exclusive jurisdiction over, and shall be the exclusive venue for, any action arising out 

of, or related to, this Agreement. 

(e) This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall

constitute an original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same document. The 

_parties will accept facsimile signatures or electronic signatures as original signatures. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and 

year first above written. 

Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation District Applicant: Hunter Ridge, LLC 

By: 
-----------

Mike Fabbre, District Manager 
By: �LU� 

J � att, Managing Partner

3 

129 of 223



130 of 223



131 of 223



132 of 223



133 of 223



134 of 223



135 of 223



www.jvajva.com 

M E M O

TO: Michael Fabbre, District Manager  DATE: November 13, 2020 
FIRM: Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation District  JOB NO. 1028.2e 
ADDRESS: 100 Gothic Road PROJECT: Hunter Ridge Development - Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

Mt. Crested Butte, CO 81225  SUBJECT: Capacity Analysis & Results 

JVA has completed its preliminary analysis of Hunter Ridge Development’s sanitary sewer proposed gravity sewer 
alignment for Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation District (MCBWSD or District).  The analysis included modeling 
the existing sewer system and the proposed Hunter Ridge development alignment. Hunter Ridge development is 
located on the south side of Hunter Hill Road and the existing sewer system the runs through the proposed 
development.  The sewer system main traverses a steep hillside and runs adjacent to the Avalanche Zone mapped by 
the Town of Mt. Crested Butte. The existing manholes are difficult for the District to access or completely inaccessible 
year-round and portions of the sewer main are very close to the Avalanche Zone.  

BACKGROUND AND RESEARCH 

The District provided JVA with their Geographic Information System (GIS) sanitary sewer database and the Hunter 
Ridge Development plans. There was no elevation data available from MCBWSD and the elevation data on the Hunter 
Ridge plans did not encompass the entirety of the sewer system that is required to be analyzed.  JVA acquired State of 
Colorado LiDAR data that was used to create a contour surface of the project area. The District was able to provide 
depth elevations for the existing system and the Hunter Ridge plans included profiles with manhole depths that were 
used to create the model. Confirmation of the ground surface and invert depths were required as there are flat spots 
in the system using the provided data and the LiDAR surface. There were two manholes MH4.12 and MH4.5 whose 
depth measurements provided by the District resulted in negative slopes using the LiDAR surface data. The pipe 
inverts for these manholes were instead calculated assuming a straight pipe between the upstream and downstream 
inverts. The profile data provided by the Hunter Ridge development was also used to determine the pipe invert 
elevations as the collected data from the District only provided invert and rim of the manholes. 

SANITARY SEWER ANALYSIS 

JVA used the EPA Stormwater Management Model (SWMM) to create sewer models of the existing and proposed 
development sewer systems. While SWMM was created for stormwater modeling, it is a dynamic hydraulic routing 
simulation model that can be used for sanitary system modeling through the use of external inflows into the pipe and 
junction network. The existing system model includes the sanitary system upstream and downstream of the Hunter 
Ridge Development property. MCBWSD completed flow monitoring of portions of their system as part of a recent 
inflow and infiltration study and the Hunter Ridge development was within one of the flow meter sewersheds. The 
measured flows were inputted into the existing system model at manhole MH4.15 to evaluate current capacity of the 
system. Figure 1 shows the existing system that was included into the model and the location of the flow meter that 
collected the data used in the model. Figure 2 is the profile of the existing sanitary system modeled.  Attached are 
summary tables of the existing model manhole and pipe inputs. 

☐ Boulder ☐ Fort Collins ☐ Winter Park ☒ Glenwood Springs ☐ Denver 
1319 Spruce Street 
Boulder, CO 80302 
303.444.1951 

213 Linden Street 
Suite 200 
Fort Collins, CO 80524 
970.225.9099 

PO Box 1860 
47 Cooper Creek Way 
Suite 328 
Winter Park, CO 80482 
970.722.7677 

817 Colorado Avenue 
Suite 301 
Glenwood Springs, CO 
81601 
970.404.3100 

1512 Larimer Street 
Suite 710 
Denver, CO 80202 
303.444.1951 

136 of 223



Buildout flows for the vacant single family lots were estimated using the June water use acquired from the District for 
lots of similar size. The flow for a single lot was identified to be 0.833 gpm. While normally a portion of the water use 
would be assumed to not reach the sewer system, the entire water use amount was utilized to be conservative.  
There are currently 12 lots not developed upstream of the modeled system equating to approximately 10.0 gpm. The 
buildout flow was added to the starting node in the model, manhole MH4.15, to account for buildout conditions. The 
buildout lots are shown in Figure 1. 

The District provided a preliminary alignment for the sewer system that was designed by NCW Associates, Inc. that 
would move the sewer main further east outside of the Avalanche Zone and within the proposed roadway and access 
road. The sewer will remain an 8-inch pipe. The development has 8 lots that will be connected to the system, 4 single 
family lots and 4 multiunit 3-plex lots. The single family lots were estimated to have a loading value of 0.833 gpm 
while  the multiunit lots were estimated to have a loading of 0.972 gpm based on water use of similar units within the 
area. Figure 3 shows the location of the proposed sewer main and assumed location of the lot connections. Figure 4 is 
the profile of the Hunter Ridge sanitary system modeled.  Attached are summary tables of the Hunter Ridge model 
manhole and pipe inputs. 

The sewer system analysis included the current condition and full buildout condition for both the existing system and 
the Hunter Ridge development. The results were evaluated using the proportional depth of flow, a measure of the 
maximum depth of flow divided by the diameter of the pipe (d/D). Table 1 provides the model d/D results. 

Table 1. Model Scenario Maximum d/D Results   

Link             Upstream Manhole Downstream 
Manhole 

Existing 
d/D 

Existing 
Buildout 

d/D 

Hunter 
Ridge 

d/D 

Hunter 
Ridge 

Buildout      
d/D 

P369             MH4.2 MH4.1 0.30 0.31 0.30 0.31 
P370             MH4.3 MH4.2 0.27 0.28 0.27 0.28 
P371             MH4.4 MH4.3 0.43 0.45 0.44 0.46 
P372             MH4.5 MH4.4 0.59 0.61 0.6 0.62 
P373             MH4.6 MH4.5 0.55 0.58 0.56 0.58 
P374             MH4.7 MH4.6 0.49 0.51 0.49 0.51 
P375             MH4.8 MH4.7 0.39 0.41     
P376             MH4.9 MH4.8 0.3 0.31     
P377             MH4.10 MH4.9 0.31 0.32     
P378             MH4.11 MH4.10 0.34 0.35     
P379             MH4.12 MH4.11 0.53 0.56 0.53 0.55 
P380             MH4.13 MH4.12 0.65 0.68 0.66 0.68 
P413             MH4.14 MH4.13 0.44 0.45 0.43 0.46 
P677             MH4.15 MH4.14 0.25 0.26 0.25 0.26 

MH410A1_DEFLEC-
MH4.7 MH4.10A1_DEFLEC MH4.7     0.28 0.29 

MH4.10A1-
MH4.10A1_DEFLEC MH4.10A1 MH4.10A1_DEFLEC     0.38 0.4 
MH4.11-MH4.10A1 MH4.11 MH4.10A1     0.35 0.36 

The results of the model indicate that the addition of the Hunter Ridge Development as proposed will not adversely 
affect the sanitary sewer system for both existing and buildout conditions. The results are based upon the previously 
outlined information and assumptions. The maximum d/D values show little change between the existing, existing 
buildout, Hunter Ridge and Hunter Ridge buildout scenarios. Generally, the maximum d/D value for sanitary sewer 
mains is 0.6. There are three pipe sections showing a d/D values greater than 0.60, P372 and P380. The slope of pipe 
P380 is shallower than the upstream pipe which results in a larger depth of flow through the pipe. The same is 
occurring for pipe P372. A d/D greater than 0.60 is usually an indicator that the pipe should be reviewed for upsizing.  

137 of 223



However, the d/D for the buildout conditions is not much higher than 0.60. Also, no other flows are anticipated to be 
added to the sewer system in this area therefore there is no reason to require upsizing the diameter of these pipes. 
Furthermore, both pipe sections have a manhole whose invert was calculated rather than a measured depth. It is 
important to obtain field data on the two manholes to ensure the assumptions in the sewer model are accurate. 
Confirmation of the ground surface and invert elevations of the manholes within the system will be needed to 
confirm the assumptions and results. The measured flow data shows there is a significant amount of inflow and 
infiltration (I/I) within the system especially during the spring snow melt. Therefore, if I/I is reduced in the system the 
maximum d/D values within the system will also be reduced.  

JVA looks forward to discussing the results of this capacity analysis for the proposed Hunter Ridge Development. 

 

Signed:  Copies to: 
        Cooper D. Best, P.E. 
        Regional Project Manager   

   
 

Attachments: 
Figure 1 - Existing System and Buildout Map  
Figure 2 - Existing System Profile 
Figure 3 - Hunter Ridge System Map 
Figure 4 - Hunter Ridge System Profile 
Model Tables 
 

138 of 223



Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA,
USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

MANHOLE

MODEL MANHOLE

LIFT STATION

GRAVITY MODEL

GRAVITY

FORCEMAIN

WATER AND SEWER

SEWER ONLY

WATER ONLY

PARCEL

BUILDOUT PARCEL

FIGURE 1 - EXISTING SYSTEM MODEL
MCBWSD HUNTER RIDGE SANITARY SEWER ANALYSIS
MT CRESTED BUTTE, COLORADO
JOB 1028.2e
JULY 2020

0 500 1,000250
FEET

1 INCH = 500 FEET

139 of 223

lat
Text Box
MH4.15

lat
Text Box
MH4.14

lat
Text Box
MH4.13

lat
Text Box
MH4.12

lat
Text Box
MH4.11

lat
Text Box
MH4.10

lat
Text Box
MH4.9

lat
Text Box
MH4.8

lat
Text Box
MH4.7

lat
Text Box
MH4.6

lat
Text Box
MH4.5

lat
Text Box
MH4.4

lat
Text Box
MH4.3

lat
Text Box
MH4.2

lat
Text Box
MH4.1

lat
Text Box
P369

lat
Text Box
P370

lat
Text Box
P371

lat
Text Box
P372

lat
Text Box
P373

lat
Text Box
P374

lat
Text Box
P375

lat
Text Box
P376

lat
Text Box
P377

lat
Text Box
P378

lat
Text Box
P379

lat
Text Box
P380

lat
Text Box
P413

lat
Text Box
P677

lat
Callout
FLOW METER MANHOLE



Water Elevation Profile: Node MH4.15 - MH4.1 

'"' N M .,. .,, (Q "' � "l 
0 � N M .,. 

'"' '"' '"' '"' '"' 

.,. 

I
.,. 

I
.,. 

I
.,. 

I
.,. 

I
.,. 

I
.,. 

I
.,. 

I
.,. 

I
.,. 

I
.,. 

I
.,. 

I
.,. 

I
.,. 

I
.,.

I 

9,26 

9,25 

9,24 

9,23 

9,22 

9,21 

�9.20 
.Q 

� 9,19 

9,18 

9,17 

9,16 

9,15 

9,14 

9,13 

2,300 2,200 2, 00 2, 00 1,900 1, 00 1,700 1, 00 1,500 1,400 1,300 1,200 1, 00 0 
:>lstance (fl) 

140 of 223



!( !( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA,
USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

!( MANHOLE
!( MODEL MANHOLE

GRAVITY
GRAVITY MODEL

FIGURE 3 - HUNTER RIDGE
SYSTEM MODEL
MCBWSD SAHUNTER RIDGE SANITARY SEWER ANALYSIS
MT CRESTED BUTTE, COLORADO
JOB 1028.2e                                                  NOVEMBER 2020

0 250 500125
FEET

1 INCH = 250 FEET

3 3-PLEX LOTS CONNECTED = 2.92 GPM

1 3-PLEX LOT CONNECTED = 0.972 GPM

4 SINGLE LOTS CONNECTED = 3.33 GPM

MH4.15

MH4.14
MH4.13

MH4.12

MH4.11

MH4.410A1_DEFLEC 
(VERT DEFLECTION LOCATION
NOT A REAL MANHOLE)

MH4.7

MH4.6

MH4.5

MH4.4

MH4.3
MH4.2

MH4.1
P369

P370

P371

P372

P373

P374

P379

P380

P413

P677

MH4.11-MH4.10A1

MH4.10A1

UPSTREAM
BUILDOUT = 10 GPM

MH4.10A1-MH4.10A1_DEFLEC

MH4.10A1_DEFLEC-MH4.7

HUNTER RIDGE
141 of 223



142 of 223



Job Name: Hunter Ridge Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

Job Number:1028.2e 

Date: 11/12/2020

By: LAL

EXISTING SYSTEM MODEL DATA

MHID 

Est. Ground Elevation

of Existing System 

LiDAR(ft)

Measured 

Depth to 

Invert (ft)

Invert 

Elevation (ft) X Y Inlet pipe offset Influent Flow 

Additional 

Buildout 

Influent Flow

MH4.1 9134.44 9.25 9125.19 2581621.044 1389565.34

MH4.2 9139.49 6.50 9132.99 2581691.065 1389511.454

MH4.3 9158.71 14.17 9144.54 2581732.562 1389476.949

MH4.4 9154.17 7.33 9146.84 2581647.608 1389283.061

MH4.5 9157.46 6.58 9148.88
a

2581626.75 1389070.178

MH4.6 9159.22 8.42 9150.80 2581670.805 1388874.553

MH4.7 9163.54 8.25 9155.29 2581692.801 1388689.156

MH4.8 9168.21 7.58 9160.63
b

2581710.962 1388555.218

MH4.9 9185.32 15.75 9169.57
b

2581733.093 1388522.951 9.55 ft

MH4.10 9195.46 6.33 9189.13
b

2581793.586 1388417.806

MH4.11 9214.48 6.83 9207.65
b

2582054.418 1388117.165

MH4.12 9217.23 7.08 9210.15
a

2582377.257 1387889.628

MH4.13 9216.37 4.92 9211.45 2582467.926 1387759.793

MH4.14 9228.47 4.67 9223.80 2582540.376 1387747.902

MH4.15 9252.48 5.83 9246.65 2582616.358 1387815.729 Flow Meter Data 10.0 gpm

PIPE ID Length Slope Upstream MH Downstream MH Entry Loss Exit Loss

P369 88.36 8.83% MH4.2 MH4.1 0.15 0

P370 53.97 21.41% MH4.3 MH4.2 1 0.15

P371 211.68 1.08% MH4.4 MH4.3 0.5 1

P372 213.9 1.48% MH4.5 MH4.4 0.5 0.5

P373 200.52 0.96% MH4.6 MH4.5 0.15 0.5

P374 186.7 2.41% MH4.7 MH4.6 0.15 0.15

P375 135.16 3.95% MH4.8 MH4.7 0.5 0.15

P376 39.13 22.84% MH4.9 MH4.8 0.15 0.5

P377 121.3 8.25% MH4.10 MH4.9 0.15 0.15

P378 398.02 4.65% MH4.11 MH4.10 0.15 0.15

P379 394.97 0.63% MH4.12 MH4.11 0.5 0.15

P380 158.36 0.82% MH4.13 MH4.12 0.9 0.5

P413 73.42 16.82% MH4.14 MH4.13 0.9 0.9

P677 101.85 22.43% MH4.15 MH4.14 0 0.9

a. Measured depth causes bust in system, Assumed straight pipe between up and down manhole. 

b. Invert elevations adjusted based on Hunter Ridge exist system data. Measured depth from District held except MH4.9, rim elevation adjusted

Page 1 of 1 143 of 223



Job Name: Hunter Ridge Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

Job Number:1028.2e 

Date: 11/12/2020

By: LAL

HUNTER RIDGE SYSTEM MODEL DATA

MHID 

Est. Ground Elevation

of Existing System 

LiDAR(ft)

Measured 

Depth to 

Invert (ft)

Invert Elevation 

(ft) X Y

Inlet pipe 

offset Influent Flow 

Additional 

Buildout Influent 

Flow Note

MH4.1 9134.44 9.25 9125.19 2581621.044 1389565.34

MH4.2 9139.49 6.50 9132.99 2581691.065 1389511.454

MH4.3 9158.71 14.17 9144.54 2581732.562 1389476.949

MH4.4 9154.17 7.33 9146.84 2581647.608 1389283.061

MH4.5 9157.46 6.58 9148.88
a

2581626.75 1389070.178

MH4.6 9159.22 8.42 9150.80 2581670.805 1388874.553

MH4.7 9163.54 8.25 9155.29 2581686.943 1388739.292 0.7 ft

MH4.10A1_DEFLEC - 0.67 9188.94 2581784.322 1388737.927 not real manhole

MH4.10A 9202.07 10.00 9192.07
b

2581789.598 1388508.397 0.5 ft 3.33 gpm

MH4.11 9213.74 6.83 9207.65
b

2582054.418 1388117.165 0.972 gpm

MH4.12 9219.09 7.08 9210.15
a

2582377.257 1387889.628 2.92 gpm

MH4.13 9216.37 4.92 9211.45 2582467.926 1387759.793

MH4.14 9228.47 4.67 9223.80 2582540.376 1387747.902

MH4.15 9252.48 5.83 9246.65 2582616.358 1387815.729 Flow Meter Data 10.0 gpm

PIPE ID Length Slope Upstream MH Downstream MH Entry Loss Exit Loss

P369 88.36 8.83% MH4.2 MH4.1 0.15 0

P370 53.97 21.41% MH4.3 MH4.2 1 0.15

P371 211.68 1.08% MH4.4 MH4.3 0.5 1

P372 213.9 1.48% MH4.5 MH4.4 0.5 0.5

P373 200.52 0.96% MH4.6 MH4.5 0.15 0.5

P374 136.22 2.41% MH4.7 MH4.6 1 0.15

MH410A1_DEFLEC-MH4.7 289.32 11.38% MH4.10A1_DEFLEC MH4.7 1 1

MH4.10A1-MH4.10A1_DEFLEC 152.82 2.05% MH4.10A1 MH4.10A1_DEFLEC 0.9 1

MH4.11-MH4.10A1 296.59 5.08% MH4.11 MH4.10A1 0.5 0.9

P379 394.97 0.63% MH4.12 MH4.11 0.5 0.5

P380 158.36 0.82% MH4.13 MH4.12 0.9 0.5

P413 73.42 16.82% MH4.14 MH4.13 0.9 0.9

P677 101.85 22.43% MH4.15 MH4.14 0 0.9

b. Invert elevations adjusted based on Hunter Ridge exist system data. Measured depth from District held, rim elevation adjusted

a. Measured depth causes bust in system, Assumed straight pipe between up and down manhole. 

Page 1 of 1
144 of 223



[Street Address, City, ST ZIP Code] 
[Phone] 

[Website] 

Hunter Hill Road Inclusion Public Comments 

Contents: 

1. Town of Mt. Crested Butte

2. Harold Duble

3. Delrena Sides

4. Craig Caukin

5. Patricia Mullin

6. Abbott, Abbott, Hart, Hart, Oettel, Bronars and Hart

7. Kathy Hooge

8. Paul E. Hooge, PhD

9. Linda and Bob Colvey

10. Robert Valentine and Robert Bolton

11. Carole and Jim Williamson

12. Nancy Grindlay

145 of 223



146 of 223



From: Harold Duble <hduble@aol.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, November 24, 2020 10:05 AM 
To: info@mcbwsd.com 
Subject: Hunter Ridge 

To Members of The Board of Directors 

Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation District 

My name is Harold Duble. I have owned a Snow Castle Condo for approximately 25 years at #35 Castle 
Road in Mt. Created Butte and spend a considerable amount of time there. My property is contiguous 
with the proposed Hunter Ridge development and I look out directly over that property. 

Let me please have your attention for just a few minutes. The city of MCB made a mistake when they did 
not advance the application made by Mr. Watt to annex and develop Hunter Ridge. But that should not 
cause you to compound their mistake by making the additional mistake of amending article 6.3.4 to 
permit you to provide water and sewer service to Hunter Ridge. Article 6.3.4 prohibits you from 
providing service to a property that is outside of the city but is contiguous with the city limits of MCB. 
Hunter Ridge is not just contiguous it is surrounded by MCB. If you somehow change 6.3.4 to provide 
service it will result in the residents of Hunter Ridge having full water and sewer service. They will not 
have to abide by the laws and ordinances of MCB which surrounds it. They will be using the streets and 
roads of MCB to gain access to their property and they will pay no city taxes to MCB forever. This is 
exactly the situation that 6.3.4 was intended to prevent. So why are you even considering amending 
6.3.4?  Who is pushing you to do this? Obviously the developer is in favor of this. When MCB did not 
approve his plan as submitted he did not try to work with them to resolve their concerns. He went 
straight to the county with a new and different plan that more than doubled the density and profitability 
of Hunter Ridge. So this is a very big thing to him and it's obvious why he is pushing you to change 6.3.4 
but who else is in favor of such a change? The neighbors around Hunter Ridge are against it. The city of 
MCB is against it and by the way they are your biggest customer. So who besides the developer are you 
trying to please by taking this action? I've not seen any official statement about this but I've heard it 
mentioned that perhaps this will make it easier for you to service your existing water and sewer lines 
that cross this property. You already have access to do this via existing easements and besides that I 
have never witnessed you having to do any work to your water and sewer lines on the property. If you 
have it has been very rare and should not be a pressing reason for you to take the drastic action of 
amending 6.3.4 so that it will not apply to Hunter Ridge which will result in all of the inequities 
mentioned above. You are apparently going to do this without even discussing it with the city of MCB 
and article 6.3.4 is very important to them. 

So give some serious thought to this situation. If you make this change you will make a lot of people mad 
and unhappy with you. Article 6.3.4 has been in existance for many years and it was put there to prevent 

147 of 223

mailto:hduble@aol.com
mailto:Psolheim@mcbwsd.com


exactly the situation you will cause by eliminating it or modifying it so that it does not apply to Hunter 
Ridge. Who is in favor of this besides the developer? Are members of the board pushing for this? Why? 
What's going on here? 

 

Do the only right thing there is to do and withdraw your request or vote against it when you have the 
opportunity to do so. 

Thanks for your consideration. 

 

Harold Duble 

 

148 of 223



1

From: Delrena Sides <dcsides@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, November 30, 2020 3:32 PM
To: Info@mcbwsd.com
Cc: Sides Delrena; Jim Sides
Subject: Letter to MCBWSD

Dear Members of the Board of Directors, Mt. Crested Butte Water and Sanitation District, 

My husband Jim and I have owned a unit at Snow Castle for over 20 yrs. It is beyond words to describe the gift of this in 
our lives. 

 We share with all our neighbors’ voices and with Community Development Director Carlos Velado's letter; June/2019, 
representing the MTCB Town Council, sent to Gunnison Planning Commission to deny waiving regulation 6.3.4. Our 
neighbor Harold Duble has written a letter to your Board and we agree with his challenges. 

This project has had problems from the very beginning. You know the story. We are especially frustrated that Gunnison 
Planning accepted Mr. Watts and partner’s meager geology study to assess slope stability in this avalanche zone. He 
drilled holes deep enough to plant a tree in. This disregard for a professional assessment should have been a 
requirement! In fact, this serious oversight is worthy of a legal challenge. 

This has been more like a political process than one based on scientific geological reasoning and on upholding the 
statutes and restrictions that guide MTCB and MCBWSD management. 

What happens when Hunter Ridge residents ask for more water? I know they would pay for it. But will they also share in 
paying the salaries of your employees who use their time and energy to meet their requests? We are concerned that 
MTCB and MCBWSD do not receive a fair share of tax revenue to help support employees' salaries and other 
infrastructure needs. 

 What guidelines are there for the in Lieu payments? Does Hunter Ridge just keep paying whether or not the lots
are bought and built on?

 How does Hunter Ridge pay their share of using the services (EMS, firefighters, police, library, schools, roads,
water supply and salaries that are provided to them by MTCB taxpayers?

It appears that Mr. Watts and his partner have maneuvered well in finding “Yes answers” to their wants and needs. If you 
approve inclusion, we will have a developed island in our midst that depends on our water and waste management 
services and all other community services. They are like guests on the mountain, but they end up staying. Will they be 
paying a fair share of tax money? Basically, we think that Gunnison is glad to be rid of this property. Glad that Mr. Watts 
and partner would develop it, and let MTCB and MCBWSD service their residents while they sit back and receive the 
greater share of tax, etc benefits. Is that so? Please do not waive 6.3.4! 

Thank you for considering our concerns. We don’t envy your responsibility to make this complex and important decision. 
The facts are known and the risks have been defined. Your decision will determine the future of MtCB.  

Sincerely, 
Delrena and Jim Sides 
Snow Castle Condominium, Unit #1 

149 of 223



1

From: Craig Caukin <ccaukin@nonprimeresource.com>
Sent: Friday, November 27, 2020 6:54 PM
To: info@mcbwsd.com
Subject: Hunter Ridge Development
Attachments: 11.4.20 Hunter Ridge 2019 ltr Comments Mt CB 2 (2).pdf

To whom it may concern: 

I am significantly opposed to the proposed subdivision named Hunter Ridge LLC.  I have owned my West Elk 11 
condominium on Castle Road since 1996.  The road will be compromised should this subdivision be completed.  Hunter 
Ridge owners have asked for an easement to access the proposed subdivision from the end of Castle Road.  The road 
was not built for this traffic.  Also, the site is not desirable for anyone to live.  It is steep, no trees with drainage issues, 
access issues and the developers have not shown the expertise or experience to build on this type of site. 

Please take this very seriously.  The Town of Mt. Crested Butte sent a Letter on June 11, 2019 to Cathie Pagano, Director 
Community and Economic Development, Gunnison County Planning Commission, denying the development because or 7 
serious concerns.  I have attached the Letter for you recollection.  It is a damning Letter and needs to be taken 
seriously.  I ask why you, our Water and Sanitation District, has not honored and paid attention to this Letter while 
considering services to this property? 

A few things to take into account in your fiduciary responsibility, which you will be held accounted for: 
‐the inclusion requirement to the annexation to Mt. CB has not been met. Hunter Ridge will not even be in compliance 
with Mt. CB rules and regulations.  Looks to me like you will be exposed here. 
‐can you ensure water capacity for a development that is not only approved by the Town but hurting other Town 
residents.  Looks to me like you will be exposed here as well. 
‐it is not clear that the Overlook has given the permission/easement to the subdivision for sewers.  If not in hand at the 
meeting, I would say you are exposed here. 

The owners of Hunter Ridge have already contacted property owners at the end of Castle Road to grant an easement so 
that they can access their property from there.  This isn’t ok.  Put yourselves in our position.  Hunter Ridge is simply 
trying to get around significant rules, regulations and decency to build their out‐of‐place subdivision.  Please put a stop 
to this and do the right thing.  What if you lived here? 

Regards, 
Craig Caukin 
303 817 9875 

150 of 223



P.O. Box 5800 
Mt Crested Butte, CO  81225 

(970) 349-6632       Fax:  (970) 349-6326 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date:  June 11, 2019 
 
To:  Cathie Pagano, Director Community and Economic Development 
           
From:  Carlos L. Velado, Community Development Director 
   
Subject:  Mt. Crested Butte Hunter Ridge Subdivision Sketch Plan Referral Comments 
 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Hunter Ridge Subdivision Sketch Plan 

Application. On June 19, 2018 The Mt Crested Butte Town Council denied the Subdivision Plan Sketch 

Plan Application submitted by Hunter Ridge, LLC by a vote of 6-1. There also was an annexation 

application submitted to the Town but since annexation approval was contingent upon subdivision approval, 

the Annexation Application was essentially terminated by the Council’s denial of the subdivision sketch 

plan. The Councils concerns that led to the denial included slope stability, the lack of demonstrated need 

for the additional lots given the current inventory, and compliance with specific aspects of the Town’s 

Community Plan. It was stated that the proposed development did not address the following requirements 

of the Community Plan: 

1) Foster a distinctive, attractive community with a strong sense of place. 

2) Foster a well-balanced community through integrated design that promotes economic 

diversity, transit, and pedestrian-friendly lifestyles, and the mixing of people from different 

backgrounds. 

3) Encourage land use to occur in such a way that it protects and enhances the existing physical 

and natural environment. 

4) Provided for a “critical mass” of permanent local residents by providing quality community 

housing integrated into the larger community and by creating a range of housing opportunities 

and choices.  

 

151 of 223

CarlosV
Initials



 

The plan submitted to the County is also materially different than the one that was denied by the Town. 

The new application has more than double the density than was proposed to the Town. The new plan has 16  

units which is comprised of 4 multi-family (triplexes) and 4 single family units. The plan submitted to the 

Town was for 7 single family units. The access has also changed. The Plan submitted to the Town had access 

from Castle Rd while the new plan comes from Hunter Hill Rd. I have attached the land use plan that was 

submitted to the Town for reference.  

The Mt. Crested Butte Town Council  has reviewed the subdivision sketch plan and voted 5-0 to 

have the following comments forwarded to the Gunnison County Planning Commission: 

The Mt. Crested Butte Town Council requests that the Hunter Ridge Major Impact Land Use Sketch Plan 

Application Located at 45 Hunter Hill Road Submitted by Hunter Ridge, LLC to be denied by the County for the 

following reasons: 

•  The project is within our 3 Mile Plan and if the property were developed, the Town would prefer it to 

be within our Town Boundaries; 

• The previous plan did not demonstrate need due to the current inventory in Town and the current 

proposed development does not either; 

• The proposed application does not meet the principals of the continuity of the Town; 

• Reasons for the Town Council's denial of the previous project were well documented; 

• Concerns still persist about the geology at the project; 

• The proposed sizes of the structures are inconsistent with Mt. Crested Butte's permitted maximum 

square footage; and 

• The previous Town Council denied the previous sketch plan 6-1. 

 
The Mt Crested Butte Planning Commission also reviewed the application and had no comment at this 

time. 

 

152 of 223

ccaukin
Note



VICINITY MAP

NOTES:

1. ALL LOTS ARE PROPOSED TO BE ZONED SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL AND SHALL BE

SUBJECT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER 21, ARTICLE III, DIVISION 2 OF THE CODE OF

THE TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE, COLORADO.

2. THE OPEN SPACE IS PROPOSED TO BE ZONED AS OPEN SPACE.

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SW¼ SE¼ OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 86

WEST, 6TH P.M., MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SE 1/16TH CORNER OF SAID SECTION 26; THENCE SOUTH 89°36'06" WEST A

DISTANCE OF 735.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SW¼ SE¼; THENCE SOUTH 1°46'06"

WEST A DISTANCE OF 370.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 39°43'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 434.00 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 50°28'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 429.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 24°53'54" EAST A DISTANCE

OF 180.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 58°48'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 127.07 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST

BOUNDARY OF SAID SW¼ SE¼;  THENCE NORTH 02°11'48" WEST ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY A

DISTANCE OF 1211.64 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND AS CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION IN THE DEED RECORDED AUGUST 28, 1972 IN BOOK 443

AT PAGE 74;

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION BY DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 25, 1974 IN BOOK 465

AT PAGE 427 AND IN DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 26, 1974 IN BOOK 465 AT PAGE 429,

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TWO TRACTS OF LAND CONVEYED TO MLJ REAL ESTATE, LP BY

WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JULY 15, 2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627782 AND RERECORDED JULY 28,

2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627999,

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE,

BEING A PORTION OF HUNTER HILL ROAD, IN BARGAIN AND SALE DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 24, 2014

UNDER RECEPTION NO. 625652.

COUNTY OF GUNNISON,

STATE OF COLORADO.

153 of 223



 

 

Patricia Mullin 

         1301 S Bates Ave     

          Springfield, Il 

62704 

MCBWSD Board 

Via email 

November 30, 2020 

Dear MCBWSD Board, 

As the owner of the property at 33 Hunter Hill Rd., I strongly oppose the Hunter Ridge 

Petition for Inclusion to the Mt Crested Butte Water and Sanitation District. 

The property is adjacent to mine and contiguous to the Town of Mt Crested Butte. Any 

development of the property should be consistent with the regulations imposed by our 

town since it is such a visible piece of property on the approach to Mt Crested Butte. The 

town has denied the plan submitted to it by the developer and instead of revising the plan 

to follow town regulations, the developer sought approval through Gunnison County. The 

plan submitted to the county is more dense than the plan submitted to the town and does 

not follow the town of Mt. CB’s original plan of single family on that property. As a 

condition for Inclusion into the Water District, 6.3.4 addresses Annexation. The town of 

Mt Crested Butte has always been willing to revisit the annexation if Hunter Ridge LLC 

resubmits and addresses the questions that they had. Because of the cooperating 3 mile 
plan with the County, the County should have sent the Hunter Ridge LLC Application 

back to the town but this did not happen. Since Mt. CB is willing to consider annexation if 

questions are addressed, then The MCBWSD cannot waive the annexation into the town 

of Mt CB requirement. 

The property is ill suited for development due to the steep terrain and questionable 

mancos shale soil. I had significant unforeseen expenses  including expensive soil nails in 

building our garage on the same hill. Testing submitted to the county of the soil has been 

spotty and not comprehensive enforcing the tendency of the developer to take the least 

restrictive route which may lead to problems when structures are being built. How much of 

a bond will be required to ensure that the Overlook sewer line is not compromised now 

that there are three road cuts? 

The current access point of the development is Hunter Hill Rd. This was a change from 

the access point of Castle Rd. Honestly the slope is so steep, I don’t know how anyone 

would venture down the planned road safely to the new development. 

Although my property has a snow plan that incorporates a snowmelt driveway and spaces 

for snow storage, I have noticed that snow from the road and other highly dense 
condominium sites dump the snow off of Hunter Hill Rd onto this property during big 

154 of 223



 

 

storms. I have not seen where a snow plan has been developed for this project. With all of 

the road cuts, how will this affect the slope and the stability of the sewer line? This needs to 

be studied. 

Your board has the power to say no to access inclusion into the water and sanitation 

district. This will force the Hunter Ridge LLC to seek approval and annexation by the town 

where proper controls and regulations will safeguard our community. 

 

Sincerely yours, 

 

Patricia Mullin 

155 of 223



156 of 223



157 of 223



158 of 223



159 of 223



160 of 223



161 of 223



162 of 223



163 of 223



164 of 223



165 of 223



166 of 223



167 of 223



168 of 223



169 of 223



Mt CB Water & San District Board 

I am Kathy Hooge @ 18 Castle Road, Mt CB and owned since 1993 and am a full-time resident. 

I request that the Board deny the Petition for Inclusion to MCBWSD from Hunter Ridge LLC . 

I am concerned about MCBWSD’s ability to supply water to a new piece of annexed property.   

In a letter dated January 30, 2008, Bill Racek (then Mt CB Planner) said “The district has 

forecasted a water supply shortage in the future if the Town of Mt Crested Butte continues to 

grow as expected”. (attached)  When I asked Frank Glick (district manager before Mike Fabbre) 

in 2008 about “enough water at buildout”, he said that if every piece of property was built on and 

people were here year round, then no, there is not enough water.  But then he said, “what are the 

chances of that”?  I say the chances are very good.  The most current study forecast a growth of 

4% per year so buildout at approx 2035.  I strongly disagree with that forecast.  Global warming 

is causing migrations and people are coming to the Gunnison Colorado valley.  With the current 

pandemic we can see that this has affected higher real estate prices in 2020 and higher rent prices 

as well as low availability due to the fact that people can work remote.  In the future, predictions 

say more people will work remote. Therefore, more of the properties that people purchased long 

ago could be built on in Mt CB to satisfy the need.  And don’t forget the potential of 1000 units 

at North Village. Because it is also very easy to rent a room in your home/condo or your 

unit/home to augment income,  due to Airbnb’s incredible platform, then more people are renting 

when they are not here which means more year round use instead of a few months per year. 

I fully request a comprehensive study of our water availability (not water processing).  We have 

water meters on everyone’s unit so one could calculate how much water is used and how much 

water we have currently and then multiply by the number of units at buildout. As I understand it, 

in the summer, in drought years, we have been at 95% capacity of water usage?.  I do not have 

the statistics, but it should be easy to compute.  If Mt Crested Butte is only at about 40% build 

out with everything that is already platted, then how will we have enough water in the future?  I 

would like definite figures before we annex a property for inclusion in the Mt CB Water District. 

I would like to know what Senior water rights MCBWSD has.  I think we may not have any that 

date back to 1903.  As I understand it, we have junior water rights and really not enough to 

service the town of Mt CB at build out. I understand MCBWSD has ditch rights, spring rights & 

the East River.  Possibly the only person that has senior water rights on the East River is Bill 

Lacy (not sure).  

I understand there is a fund comprised of ‘in lieu’ of water rights collected from previous parcels 

without water rights that received annexation or water without annexation. How much is in that 

fund?  It is expensive to buy water in the state of Colorado and here in Mt CB area.  If you do 

buy water, how do you get it to the water plant. This would be expensive. So how does “in lieu 

of help?  Only properties that bring water rights should be allowed to annex.  Long Lake is 

oversold so that is not an option to purchase water rights.  The possibility of the proposed dam 

from 1984 from the Conditional Water Rights Decree will not provide water as Wright Water 

Engineers from Denver in 2008 did the core samples and said that specific area would not hold 

170 of 223



water even with a liner.  I know that the Kapushion’s own water rights in Washington Gulch, and 

the Allen’s own adjacent so possibly a dam in a different location?  But, in order to use these 

other properties, the owners would need to be paid and if they are not in favor, then the 

condemnation process is long and costly and the District would still have to pay a fair price.  I 

know that the Allen’s were paid $40,000 in 2008, just to grant the easement for a 2 year period 

so the Water Engineers could do the study.  So not only will the property cost a lot of money, but 

the Dam will be expensive if an area can be found that could hold water. 

The Water dam proposed by CBMR called Crescent Lake at the edge of North Village ( which is 

for snow making and recreation) has not ,to my knowledge, had a geology study done to see if it 

will hold water, not do we have current cost estimates. Even if MCBWSD & CBMR were to 

partner, there is no guarantee that the site would hold water or how expensive it would be. 

The East River, from which Mt CB gets most of its water, empties into the Gunnison which 

empties into the Colorado.  Knowing that other people have more senior water rights, then what 

does that mean to MCBWSD in a drought situation? I think it needs to be proven that we have 

enough water.  

The Citizen’s Guide to Colorado Water Law is a good read.  Everyone in our state should read it 

and be informed about water. 

Until a complete accurate study is done by MCBWSD that gives the citizens a clear picture and 

proof of our water availability in the future at buildout, then no new properties should be 

annexed. 

Also, 6.3.4 says that to be included, the project must be annexed into the Town of Mt. CB.  Mt 

CB asked for more information and that is why they turned down the Hunter Ridge LLC project 

assuming they would come back with answers, but they went to the County instead.  The County 

should follow the 3 mile plan and send the project back to Mt Crested Butte for the Hunter Ridge 

Project to follow Mt. CB’s criteria.   

Therefore since proof of water is not available and 6.3.4 has not been met, I request that you 

deny the Hunter Ridge LLC Inclusion. 

I would also think it would be better for voting to wait until the 1st of the year when you would 

have a full board. 

Please send receipt that you received my email and I assume all letters will be included in the 

Dec 4 packet so we can read them on line?   

Respectfully, 

Kathy Hooge    Khooge2000@yahoo.com – 18 Castle Road 

 

171 of 223

mailto:Khooge2000@yahoo.com


172 of 223



Dec 1, 2020-  

Reference – Hunter Ridge LLC Letter  RE: Inclusion into MCBWSD 

From Paul Hooge – 18 Castle Road – owner since 1993, full time resident 

Dear MCBWSD Board: 

 I request that the Board deny the Petition for Inclusion to MCBWSD from Hunter Ridge LLC . 

 I understand that no private landowner should be deprived of reasonable economic use of their 

property, but Mt Crested Butte has varying terrain and more extensive geologic studies should be 

done to make sure the prospective buyer is not left with an unbuildable lot.  As I understand it 

Hunter Ridge LLC is only putting in the roads and water/sewer to the lots and not doing the 

development; they will only sell the lots. 

Andesite Point was left after the builder could not build the units on the piece of property in 

2005.  I see excavation equipment every year at the Villas Summit phase 3.  Nothing has been 

built there and I don’t know what that means.  The Bridges at Columbine, which is recent, is for 

sale and no lots were sold or built on. Lot 3 in The Summit sold for $300,000 in 2012 and was 

basically scrapped for $15,000 due to problems with building on the lot in 2018. Insurance does 

not pay. The owner is stuck with the bill. 

The Petition should be denied due to 6.3.4 in the Rules as Mt Crested Butte is willing to consider 

annexation if questions are answered and proper due diligence done.  They are only asking to 

protect the citizens of Mt Crested Butte to make sure anything built on the property follows 

established guidelines. (see attached) 

I have several questions for the Board.   

1. What is the amount Hunter Ridge LLC will pay in lieu of water rights and will it be paid 

up front? 

2. Will Hunter Ridge LLC have to pay up front for running water and sewer to the lots as 

they are an LLC and can declare bankruptcy if costs are too high, then MCBWSD would 

not get paid?  Will the owners of the lots have to pay for the hook-ups? 

3. Will there be a bond to pay for damages if Hunter Ridge LLC causes damage to the 

Sewer line to Overlook? 

 

 

Attached is the 2019 Mt Crested Butte Letter in case no one else has included. 

Respectfully, 

Paul E. Hooge, PhD 

 

 

173 of 223



P.O. Box 5800 
Mt Crested Butte, CO  81225 

(970) 349-6632       Fax:  (970) 349-6326 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date:  June 11, 2019 
 
To:  Cathie Pagano, Director Community and Economic Development 
           
From:  Carlos L. Velado, Community Development Director 
   
Subject:  Mt. Crested Butte Hunter Ridge Subdivision Sketch Plan Referral Comments 
 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Hunter Ridge Subdivision Sketch Plan 

Application. On June 19, 2018 The Mt Crested Butte Town Council denied the Subdivision Plan Sketch 

Plan Application submitted by Hunter Ridge, LLC by a vote of 6-1. There also was an annexation 

application submitted to the Town but since annexation approval was contingent upon subdivision approval, 

the Annexation Application was essentially terminated by the Council’s denial of the subdivision sketch 

plan. The Councils concerns that led to the denial included slope stability, the lack of demonstrated need 

for the additional lots given the current inventory, and compliance with specific aspects of the Town’s 

Community Plan. It was stated that the proposed development did not address the following requirements 

of the Community Plan: 

1) Foster a distinctive, attractive community with a strong sense of place. 

2) Foster a well-balanced community through integrated design that promotes economic 

diversity, transit, and pedestrian-friendly lifestyles, and the mixing of people from different 

backgrounds. 

3) Encourage land use to occur in such a way that it protects and enhances the existing physical 

and natural environment. 

4) Provided for a “critical mass” of permanent local residents by providing quality community 

housing integrated into the larger community and by creating a range of housing opportunities 

and choices.  

 

174 of 223

CarlosV
Initials



 

The plan submitted to the County is also materially different than the one that was denied by the Town. 

The new application has more than double the density than was proposed to the Town. The new plan has 16  

units which is comprised of 4 multi-family (triplexes) and 4 single family units. The plan submitted to the 

Town was for 7 single family units. The access has also changed. The Plan submitted to the Town had access 

from Castle Rd while the new plan comes from Hunter Hill Rd. I have attached the land use plan that was 

submitted to the Town for reference.  

The Mt. Crested Butte Town Council  has reviewed the subdivision sketch plan and voted 5-0 to 

have the following comments forwarded to the Gunnison County Planning Commission: 

The Mt. Crested Butte Town Council requests that the Hunter Ridge Major Impact Land Use Sketch Plan 

Application Located at 45 Hunter Hill Road Submitted by Hunter Ridge, LLC to be denied by the County for the 

following reasons: 

•  The project is within our 3 Mile Plan and if the property were developed, the Town would prefer it to 

be within our Town Boundaries; 

• The previous plan did not demonstrate need due to the current inventory in Town and the current 

proposed development does not either; 

• The proposed application does not meet the principals of the continuity of the Town; 

• Reasons for the Town Council's denial of the previous project were well documented; 

• Concerns still persist about the geology at the project; 

• The proposed sizes of the structures are inconsistent with Mt. Crested Butte's permitted maximum 

square footage; and 

• The previous Town Council denied the previous sketch plan 6-1. 

 
The Mt Crested Butte Planning Commission also reviewed the application and had no comment at this 

time. 

 

175 of 223



VICINITY MAP

NOTES:

1. ALL LOTS ARE PROPOSED TO BE ZONED SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL AND SHALL BE

SUBJECT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER 21, ARTICLE III, DIVISION 2 OF THE CODE OF

THE TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE, COLORADO.

2. THE OPEN SPACE IS PROPOSED TO BE ZONED AS OPEN SPACE.

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SW¼ SE¼ OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 86

WEST, 6TH P.M., MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SE 1/16TH CORNER OF SAID SECTION 26; THENCE SOUTH 89°36'06" WEST A

DISTANCE OF 735.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SW¼ SE¼; THENCE SOUTH 1°46'06"

WEST A DISTANCE OF 370.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 39°43'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 434.00 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 50°28'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 429.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 24°53'54" EAST A DISTANCE

OF 180.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 58°48'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 127.07 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST

BOUNDARY OF SAID SW¼ SE¼;  THENCE NORTH 02°11'48" WEST ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY A

DISTANCE OF 1211.64 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND AS CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION IN THE DEED RECORDED AUGUST 28, 1972 IN BOOK 443

AT PAGE 74;

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION BY DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 25, 1974 IN BOOK 465

AT PAGE 427 AND IN DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 26, 1974 IN BOOK 465 AT PAGE 429,

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TWO TRACTS OF LAND CONVEYED TO MLJ REAL ESTATE, LP BY

WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JULY 15, 2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627782 AND RERECORDED JULY 28,

2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627999,

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE,

BEING A PORTION OF HUNTER HILL ROAD, IN BARGAIN AND SALE DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 24, 2014

UNDER RECEPTION NO. 625652.

COUNTY OF GUNNISON,

STATE OF COLORADO.

176 of 223



1

From: bcolvey@southwind.net
Sent: Tuesday, December 1, 2020 2:53 PM
To: info@mcbwsd.com
Subject: Proposed Hunter Ridge Development
Attachments: OverlookSewerEasement1994.pdf

Hello Board Members, 

First, thank you for serving on the Board of the Mt. CB W&S District.  We recognize and appreciate the work 
you do for our community. 

By way of introduction, we are Linda and Bob Colvey. We are full‐time residents of Mt CB and live at 14 
Peakview Dr. in the Overlook subdivision.  

Please accept this letter as opposition to the Hunter Ridge proposed development. Our reasoning is as follows: 

1. The project, on a much smaller scale, was originally submitted to Mt. CB and was denied in June of
2018.  In your packet you have a letter from Mr. Carlos Velado (6/11/19) explaining the town’s
reasoning.  Since that time, the project has more than doubled in scope going from the original 7 units
to the current proposal of 16 units.

2. There are very real and serious issues with the following:
 Geology – please see comments in #4 that follows.
 Traffic/Safety – the proposed entrance to the development is adjacent to a blind curve on

Hunter Hill Rd.  Also, during icy winter conditions, cars heading downhill on Hunter Hill have
skidded off the road, gone over the embankment, and ended up in the area where the
fourplexes and entrance road are proposed.

 Snow Plowing/Storage – when the town plows Hunter Hill Rd. the snow will go over the
embankment and onto the roads and individual properties in Hunter Ridge. This area currently
experiences snow slides caused by plowing. (Hunter Hill Rd. is plowed by the town; the
proposed development will be plowed by a contractor on a different schedule.)

3. The landscape in Mt. CB is littered with numerous building projects that were started with the best of
intentions yet never completed.  Examples include: Andesite Point, Bridges at Columbine, Wildhorse at
Prospect (the four foundations that sat untouched for 3‐4 years), the Villas at the Summit, Nevada
Ridge and the Outrun Poplar Building.  Any project of this scope warrants appropriate and
proportionate bonding on the principals, not just on an LLC which can easily shelter and/or transfer
assets.

4. Soil Instability – you have 2 different documents in your packet from Lambert Geotechnical Engineers.
Both letters point out the risks inherent in this area.

 In their 10/9/2017 letter:
Pg. 6 – “References cited in the Site Geology section show the area as landslides and unstable
slopes.”

177 of 223



2

Pg. 7 – “Signs of soil creep were evident.” 
Pg. 7 – “The slope should be considered potentially unstable.”  
 

 In their 12/27/18 letter: 
Pg. 5 – “A site structure specific geotechnical engineering study should be performed for any 
proposed new construction to provide geotechnical engineering suggestions and 
recommendations for design and construction of the structures.”  
Pg. 5, 4.0 – “Post Design Considerations – The project geotechnical engineer should be 
consulted during construction of the project to observe site conditions and open excavations 
during construction and to provide materials testing of soil and concrete.” 
Pg. 5, 4.0 – “Our experience has shown that significant variations are likely to exist and can 
become apparent only during additional on site excavation.  For this reason, a site and structure 
specific geotechnical engineering study should be performed for any proposed new 
construction to provide geotechnical engineering suggestions and recommendations for design 
and construction of the structures.” 
 

5. Overlook Subdivision Sewer Easement – Attached to this letter is a copy of an easement for 
underground utilities for the Overlook subdivision across the land proposed for Hunter Ridge. Please 
note that para. 1 protects Overlook as follows: “Grantor shall not interfere with or cause damage or 
additional expense to Grantee’s Utilities installation or use.”  As noted by Lambert Engineers in their 
letters referenced above, this land has experienced soil creep and is potentially unstable. Further, they 
state that any proposed construction should have a site and structure specific geotechnical 
engineering study. Without these specific studies, how can the homeowners in Overlook be assured 
that the terms of their easement are being honored and that their sewer service will not be impacted? 

 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Respectfully, 
Linda and Bob Colvey 
14 Peakview Dr.  
Mt. CB, CO. 81225 

 
 

178 of 223



179 of 223



180 of 223



181 of 223



182 of 223



183 of 223



184 of 223



December 2, 2020 
 
To:  Mt. Crested Butte Water and Sanitation District Board 
 
From: Robert Valentine and Robert Bolton – Owners of 2 Peakview Drive, the Overlook Subdivision 
 
Subject:  Rejecting Hunter Ridge Application for Water and Sewer Access in MTCB. 
 
Dear Water and Sanitation District Board (the “Board”), 
We are in opposition of the Board approving the application to supply water and sanitation services to the 
Hunter Ridge Development for the reasons stated below.  We feel that there are too many risks relative to the 
benefits of that parcel of land being developed. 
 
Our Primary Objections to the Project Are: 

1. The geological stability of the hill and the ability of the Developer to remedy any immediate or long-
term damage caused by their disturbing the parcel of land including future rupture of the new water 
and sewer infrastructure to be installed.   

a. The Developer should be required to post a significant bond to insure they don’t leave the LLC 
with no money in it for fixing future land or infrastructure issues. 

b. A personal guarantee by the Developer to remedy long term “damage” to the area or water 
and sewer infrastructure, would be another layer of protection that “things get done right”. 
 

2. The easement for Water and Sewer to the Overlook neighborhood could be impacted by the 
development – any agreement to extend should address this risk with an appropriate remedy.  See 
attached.  

  
3. We are concerned about the access point and grade into and throughout the development and the 

ability of fire vehicles to access the site in the event of a fire.  An unabated fire could spread to the 
Overlook subdivision quite easily. 
 

4. The June 11, 2019 letter to Cathy Pagano from Carlos L. Velado asked that the sketch plan and green 
light to the project be denied for the reasons in that letter.  As a Mt. Crested Butte taxpayer who 
employs Carlos, we fully support his assessment of why the project should NOT be approved as he is 
our local expert on such matters.  His assessment and conclusions should be respected, not overruled.  
See attached.  Further, Mayor Farmer has sent a letter to the District requesting they deny the 
inclusion.  Again, that should be respected, not overruled. 

 
5. We are concerned about having an adequate supply of water for our community, given recent 

droughts. 
 

Thank you for your time today and to allow us to weigh in on this subject.  We do oppose extending water and 
sewer services to the proposed development site – at this time – as the risks to the Overlook Neighborhood, 
where we live, is too high and unnecessary to take on at this point. 
 
Respectfully, 
Robert Valentine (bobcat2me@aol.com) & Robert Bolton (stevebolton@me.com) 
2 Peakview Drive - Overlook Subdivision, Mt. Crested Butte, CO 81225 
713-594-9025 

185 of 223

mailto:bobcat2me@aol.com


P.O. Box 5800 
Mt Crested Butte, CO  81225 

(970) 349-6632       Fax:  (970) 349-6326 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date:  June 11, 2019 
 
To:  Cathie Pagano, Director Community and Economic Development 
           
From:  Carlos L. Velado, Community Development Director 
   
Subject:  Mt. Crested Butte Hunter Ridge Subdivision Sketch Plan Referral Comments 
 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Hunter Ridge Subdivision Sketch Plan 

Application. On June 19, 2018 The Mt Crested Butte Town Council denied the Subdivision Plan Sketch 

Plan Application submitted by Hunter Ridge, LLC by a vote of 6-1. There also was an annexation 

application submitted to the Town but since annexation approval was contingent upon subdivision approval, 

the Annexation Application was essentially terminated by the Council’s denial of the subdivision sketch 

plan. The Councils concerns that led to the denial included slope stability, the lack of demonstrated need 

for the additional lots given the current inventory, and compliance with specific aspects of the Town’s 

Community Plan. It was stated that the proposed development did not address the following requirements 

of the Community Plan: 

1) Foster a distinctive, attractive community with a strong sense of place. 

2) Foster a well-balanced community through integrated design that promotes economic 

diversity, transit, and pedestrian-friendly lifestyles, and the mixing of people from different 

backgrounds. 

3) Encourage land use to occur in such a way that it protects and enhances the existing physical 

and natural environment. 

4) Provided for a “critical mass” of permanent local residents by providing quality community 

housing integrated into the larger community and by creating a range of housing opportunities 

and choices.  

 

186 of 223

CarlosV
Initials



 

The plan submitted to the County is also materially different than the one that was denied by the Town. 

The new application has more than double the density than was proposed to the Town. The new plan has 16  

units which is comprised of 4 multi-family (triplexes) and 4 single family units. The plan submitted to the 

Town was for 7 single family units. The access has also changed. The Plan submitted to the Town had access 

from Castle Rd while the new plan comes from Hunter Hill Rd. I have attached the land use plan that was 

submitted to the Town for reference.  

The Mt. Crested Butte Town Council  has reviewed the subdivision sketch plan and voted 5-0 to 

have the following comments forwarded to the Gunnison County Planning Commission: 

The Mt. Crested Butte Town Council requests that the Hunter Ridge Major Impact Land Use Sketch Plan 

Application Located at 45 Hunter Hill Road Submitted by Hunter Ridge, LLC to be denied by the County for the 

following reasons: 

•  The project is within our 3 Mile Plan and if the property were developed, the Town would prefer it to 

be within our Town Boundaries; 

• The previous plan did not demonstrate need due to the current inventory in Town and the current 

proposed development does not either; 

• The proposed application does not meet the principals of the continuity of the Town; 

• Reasons for the Town Council's denial of the previous project were well documented; 

• Concerns still persist about the geology at the project; 

• The proposed sizes of the structures are inconsistent with Mt. Crested Butte's permitted maximum 

square footage; and 

• The previous Town Council denied the previous sketch plan 6-1. 

 
The Mt Crested Butte Planning Commission also reviewed the application and had no comment at this 

time. 

 

187 of 223



VICINITY MAP

NOTES:

1. ALL LOTS ARE PROPOSED TO BE ZONED SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL AND SHALL BE

SUBJECT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER 21, ARTICLE III, DIVISION 2 OF THE CODE OF

THE TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE, COLORADO.

2. THE OPEN SPACE IS PROPOSED TO BE ZONED AS OPEN SPACE.

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SW¼ SE¼ OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 13 SOUTH, RANGE 86

WEST, 6TH P.M., MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SE 1/16TH CORNER OF SAID SECTION 26; THENCE SOUTH 89°36'06" WEST A

DISTANCE OF 735.00 FEET ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SW¼ SE¼; THENCE SOUTH 1°46'06"

WEST A DISTANCE OF 370.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 39°43'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 434.00 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 50°28'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 429.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 24°53'54" EAST A DISTANCE

OF 180.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 58°48'54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 127.07 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST

BOUNDARY OF SAID SW¼ SE¼;  THENCE NORTH 02°11'48" WEST ALONG SAID EAST BOUNDARY A

DISTANCE OF 1211.64 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND AS CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION IN THE DEED RECORDED AUGUST 28, 1972 IN BOOK 443

AT PAGE 74;

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO CRESTED BUTTE DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION, A COLORADO CORPORATION BY DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 25, 1974 IN BOOK 465

AT PAGE 427 AND IN DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 26, 1974 IN BOOK 465 AT PAGE 429,

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TWO TRACTS OF LAND CONVEYED TO MLJ REAL ESTATE, LP BY

WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JULY 15, 2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627782 AND RERECORDED JULY 28,

2014 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 627999,

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT THE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE,

BEING A PORTION OF HUNTER HILL ROAD, IN BARGAIN AND SALE DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 24, 2014

UNDER RECEPTION NO. 625652.

COUNTY OF GUNNISON,

STATE OF COLORADO.

188 of 223



189 of 223



190 of 223



191 of 223



192 of 223



193 of 223



194 of 223



1

From: Jim Williamson <jgwceo@ipa.net>
Sent: Tuesday, December 1, 2020 5:11 PM
To: info@mcbwsd.com
Subject: Hunter Hill Petition of Inclusion.

Ladies and Gentlemen,  

We wish to express our concern on the Hunter Hill Petition for Inclusion to the Mt. CB Water and 
Sanitation District.  We believe the Inclusion would allow a project denied by Mt. Crested Butte to be 
modified only slightly and slip through another governing body.  That would set an unfortunate 
precedent.  We have owned our condominium in Mt. Crested Butte since 1992.  Over the years we 
have watched the town grow and appreciated the cooperation between the town and the county. 
Besides the project being environmentally unsound, it is contrary to the wishes of the town of Mt. 
Crested Butte for its future development.  

Thank you,  
Carole and Jim Williamson,  
Owners 21 Castle Road #8    

195 of 223



	 1	

December	1,	2020	
	
RE:	Hunter	Ridge	LLC	Petition	for	Inclusion	to	the	Mt	Crested	Butte	Water	and	Sanitation	
District	
	
Dear	Mt	Crested	Butte	Water	and	Sanitation	District	Board:	
	
I	am	a	full-time	resident	and	property	owner	in	Mt	Crested	Butte,	and	a	Mt	Crested	Butte	
Water	and	Sanitation	District	(MCBWSD)	customer.		I	am	writing	to	request that the 
MCBWSD Board deny the Petition for Inclusion to the MCBWSD filed by Hunter Ridge, LLC. 
	
The	Rules	and	Regulations	of	the	District	adopted	on	August	11,	2015	as	revised	July	16,	
2018	set	forth	the	requirements	for	inclusion	of	property	in	the	District.		The	Petition	fails	
to	satisfy	the	requirements	for	inclusion	in	the	District	in	at	least	one	particular—the	
Property	must	be	annexed	to	the	Town	of	Mt	Crested	at	the	time	of	inclusion.	
	
As	a	condition	of	inclusion	to	the	District,	Section	6.3.4	of	the	Regulations	states	“The	
Petitioner	has	complied	with	all	requirements	of	the	Town	of	Mt.	Crested	Butte,	Colorado	
and	has	been	or	will	be	concurrently	annexed	to	the	Town	of	Mt.	Crested	Butte,	Colorado.”		
The	Town	of	Mt	Crested	Butte	denied	subdivision	and	annexation	of	the	Property	on	June	
20,	2018.		Since	the	Property	is	not	annexed	now,	nor	will	it	be	annexed	concurrently,	this	
requirement	is	not	satisfied	and	the	Board	may	not	include	the	Property	in	the	District.			
	
Section	6.3.4	goes	on	to	state,	“Provided,	however,	if	the	property	is	not	contiguous	to	or	is	
not	capable	of	being	annexed	to	the	Town	of	Mt.	Crested	Butte,	Colorado,	the	District	may	
waive	the	requirements	of	this	Section	6.3.4.”		In	this	case	the	Property	IS	contiguous	to	the	
Town.		And	IS	capable	of	being	annexed.		The	Property	could	be	annexed	should	a	
satisfactory	and	appropriate	plan	of	development	be	submitted.		See	attachments	A	(Mt	CB	
2020	3-mile	plan)	and	B	(Nov.	9,	2020	letter	to	District	from	Town	of	Mt	CB),	which	
describe	the	Property	as	desirable	for	annexation	by	the	Town.		Therefore,	the	second	
section	of	Section	6.3.4	is	inapplicable	and	the	District	may	not	waive	the	annexation	
requirement	of	the	first	sentence	of	Section	6.3.4.		
	
Section	6.11	reiterates	the	annexation	requirement	stating	it	as	a	specific	condition	of	final	
approval	for	inclusion	in	the	District.	
	
In	summary,	this	petition	must	be	dismissed	because	it	does	not	meet	at	least	one	of	
the	requirements	of	the	District	Regulations.			
	
However,	should	the	Petitioner	satisfy	the	annexation	requirement	at	some	later	date,	as	a	
concerned	resident,	I	would	like	the	Board	to	consider	two	other	issues	that	should	be	
addressed:			
	
1.	The	lack	of	engineering	and	geotechnical	analysis	of	the	effect	of	the	proposed	
development	of	the	Property	on	the	Overlook	sewer	main.		
	

196 of 223



	 2	

It	is	the	District’s	job	to	protect	its	existing	infrastructure.		The	Property	is	traversed	by	a	
District	sewer	main	that	services	the	Overlook	Subdivision.		The	sewer	main	is	located	just	
above	a	precarious	slope	break	and	at	the	head	of	an	avalanche	zone	where	slopes	change	
from	30%	to	60+%.		The	Property	is	classified	as	unstable	slopes	with	landslides	by	the	
Colorado	Geologic	Survey	(Soule,	1976).		Lambert	and	Associates	note	on	page	7	of	the	
geotechnical	report	supplied	by	the	Petitioner	“Signs	of	soil	creep	were	evident.”	On	the	
same	page,	the	report	goes	on	to	say	“The	slope	should	be	considered	potentially	unstable.		
Because	of	the	site	characteristics	there	is	at	least	some	potential	risk”.			Thus,	development	
on	the	steep,	unstable	slopes	that	characterize	the	Property	has	potential	for	disruption	of	
the	sewer	main.			
	
The	Lambert	and	Associates	geotechnical	report	and	Theoretical	Slope	Analysis	provided	
by	the	Petitioner	were	prepared	in	2017	and	2018,	respectively,	for	a	proposed	subdivision	
brought	before	the	Town	of	Mt.	Crested	Butte.		The	proposed	development	at	that	time	was	
for	a	single,	slope-parallel	road	and	7	single-family	units.		The	proposed	development	
before	the	County	and	now	before	the	Board	is	vastly	different	and	more	complex	in	terms	
of	engineering	design.		The	proposed	development	now	includes	three	roads	that	will	
require	substantial	grading	and	fill	and	16	units	(4	triplexes	and	4	single-family	units).		
Furthermore,	the	Theoretical	Slope	Analysis	prepared	by	Lambert	and	Associates	was	
performed	without	consideration	of	the	potential	impacts	of	proposed	road	grading,	snow	
storage	and	associated	melt,	changes	in	natural	drainage	patterns,	detention	ponds,	and	
structures	on	slope	stability.		All	of	these	are	known	factors	that	can	cause	slope	failure	(in	
some	cases,	catastrophic)	due	to	oversaturation	of	soils,	overloading	and/or	
oversteepening	of	steep,	unstable	slopes.	
	
The	District	has	had	recent	experience	with	how	slope	instability	can	detrimentally	affect	a	
sewer	main.		In	2018	the	District	applied	for	a	variance	to	the	Town	of	Mt	CB	to	be	able	to	
construct	a	two	tiered	retaining	wall	to	shore	up	an	unstable	slope	that	was	impacting	a	
sewer	main	below	Gothic	Road	(see	attached	document	C).	The	solution	to	mitigate	the	
instability	was	an	expensive	and	extensive	undertaking.		If	the	inclusion	of	the	Property	
moves	forward	without	a	thorough	geotechnical	and	engineering	assessment	of	the	
potential	impacts	of	the	proposed	development	on	the	Overlook	sewer	main,	the	Board	
must	ask	themselves	if	the	District	will	be	prepared	to	pay	for	similar	stabilization	of	the	
Overlook	sewer	main.	
	
At	a	minimum,	the	Petitioner	should	satisfy	the	Board	that	his	proposed	development	will	
not	negatively	affect	the	Overlook	sewer	main.		To	do	so,	he	must	address	how	the	
proposed	snow	storage	and	associated	melt,	located	immediately	upslope,	downslope	and	
on	top	of	sections	of	the	sewer	main,	the	proposed	detention	ponds,	also	located	
immediately	upslope	of	a	section	of	the	sewer	main,	and	the	up	to	18	feet	of	fill	for	grading	
road	C,	again	immediately	upslope	and	on	top	of	sections	of	the	sewer	main,	will	impact	
slope	stability	in	the	vicinity	of	the	sewer	main	(see	attached	documents	D,	E,	F).		
	
2.		The	lack	of	a	recent	study	to	determine	the	adequacy	of	the	District’s	water	rights	
in	light	of	its	obligation	to	provide	service	at	100%	build-out	plus	inclusion	of	the	
Property	at	peak	demand.		

197 of 223



	 3	

	
The	most	recent	study	conducted	addressing	the	adequacy	of	Districts	water	rights	to	serve	
all	users	at	full	build-out	was	in	2014	by	Stantec	Engineering.		It	should	be	noted	that	
during	the	past	several	years	water	conservation	measures	have	been	required	of	District	
customers	during	peak	use	summer	months.		These	conservation	measures	have	been	
required	although	the	District	is	only	at	partial	build	out	(~43	%	as	of	2018,	JVA	
Engineering).		Conservation	measures	have	been	even	more	restrictive	during	East	River	
low	flow	years	(e.g.,	2013,	2018,	2020)	when	the	amount	of	water	that	the	District	may	
legally	draw	from	the	East	River,	due	to	the	mostly	junior	status	of	its	rights,	is	reduced	to	a	
fraction	of	normal	(1.78	cfs	in	summer	and	1.1	cfs	in	winter).		That	translates	to	0.97	Mgd	
in	summer	and	0.71	Mgd	in	winter.		Full	build-out	calculations	project	up	to	2.0	Mgd	of	
water	use.		Other	less	reliable	(due	to	seasonal	fluctuations	and	turbidity)	sources	of	water	
include	springs	on	Mt	Crested	Butte	and	the	Malenski	Ditch	and	pipeline.		If	low	flow	years	
continue	to	be	the	norm	rather	than	the	exception,	will	the	District	be	able	to	meet	its	
obligation	of	providing	service	at	100%	build-out	plus	the	included	Property	at	peak	
demand?	
	
The	demographic	of	the	District	is	changing.		In	the	past	couple	of	years	more	year-round	
residents	have	moved	into	the	District	due	to	the	ability	to	work	remotely	and	a	desire	to	
relocate	from	urban	centers.		There	has	also	been	a	dramatic	increase	in	the	number	and	
use	of	short-term	rentals.		In	many	cases	these	are	second	homes/condos	that,	in	the	past,	
had	been	vacant	most	of	the	year.		This	dynamic	has	the	potential	to	increase	water	
demand	during	critical	low	flow	times	in	the	fall	“off	season”	when	traditionally	the	District	
has	had	few	users.			
	
These	facts	support	the	requirement	of	an	up-to-date	study	of	the	adequacy	of	the	District’s	
water	rights	to	meet	full	build-out,	and	to	evaluate	the	Districts	ability	to	grow	its	service	
area	to	include	the	Property,	which	does	not	have	transferable	water	rights.		These	data	are	
especially	critical	given	the	general	long-term	trend	of	increasing	temperatures,	lower	
precipitation	and	extreme	drought	conditions	in	the	Gunnison	watershed.		
	
In	closing,	I	would	also	like	the	Board	to	consider	that	this	is	an	important	decision,	
affecting	the	ability	of	the	District	to	serve	its	constituents	in	the	future.		In	addition	to	
requiring	added	analysis	of	geology	and	water	quantity,	I	respectfully	request	that	the	
current	members	of	the	Board	wait	until	the	entire	membership	is	present	to	decide	this	
important	petition.	
 
Sincerely,	
	
Nancy	Grindlay		
15	Castle	Rd,	Mt	Crested	Butte	

198 of 223



TOWN OF MT. CRESTED BUTTE 

THREE MILE PLAN 

AS REQUIRED BY C.R.S. §31-12-105 

 

ORIGINALLY ADOPTED ON JANUARY 10, 1994 

AMENDED ON JANUARY 16, 1996 , SEPTEMBER 16, 1997, DECEMBER 1, 1998, 

SEPTEMBER 4, 2018, NOVEMBER 6, 2019, AND NOVEMBER 4, 2020 

 

1. THREE MILE PLAN FOR MT. CRESTED BUTTE 

 

This plan envisions a community that manages growth to preserve what we appreciate about 

the Upper East River valley. In order to remain consistent in future planning, the goals and 

objectives as previously set forth in the Mt. Crested Butte Master Plan are to be recognized 

and carried forth into any new development or annexation that may occur in the future. 

 

In accordance with requirements set forth in the 1987 amendment to the Colorado Municipal 

Annexation Act of 1965, C.R.S.  §31-12-105, a municipality is required to have a Three Mile 

Plan adopted before annexation may take place. 

 

The Three Mile Plan is hereby developed to comply with C.R.S. §31-12-105.  The Three 

Mile Plan hereby incorporates the Master Plan, as such is amended, and the Gunnison County 

Road and Bridge Map, as such is amended, to the extent that it is within the boundaries of the 

Three Mile Plan. 

 

Public Facilities in the Three-Mile area will be provided as follows: 

 

I. Power - Gunnison County Electric Association. This includes successors and/or 

assigns, and future service providers. 

 

II. Telephone – CenturyLink and cellular providers. This includes successors and/or 

assigns, and future service providers. 

 

III. Natural Gas - Atmos Energy is available within the Town and to the south of Town 

and along Gothic Road in the main pipeline. This includes successors and/or assigns, 

and future service providers. 

 

IV. Telecommunications – Network television is available in Mt. Crested Butte because 

of services provided by the Gunnison County Metropolitan Recreation District. 

Telecommunications are available in and near Mt. Crested Butte from Spectrum, 

Direct TV, and Dish Network. This includes successors and/or assigns, and future 

service providers. 

 

V. Water and Sewer - Available in the Town from Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation 

District. Sewer service is extended as per District ordinances. This includes 

successors and/or assigns, and future service providers. 

 

199 of 223

lewisabrams2
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

lewisabrams2
Highlight



VI.  Trash Collection - Waste Management and Golden Eagle provide trash collection 

services on a contract basis within the Town. This includes successors and/or assigns, 

and future service providers. 

 

VII. Transportation - Mountain Express bus service is provided between Mt. Crested 

Butte and Crested Butte and services the residents and visitors of Mt. Crested Butte. 

Gunnison Valley RTA bus service is provided by the county and services the 

Gunnison valley. This includes successors and/or assigns, and future service 

providers. 

 

VIII. Sidewalks and trails - Any land use change or annexation within the three-mile area 

shall consider existing trails and new trails as appropriate to connect any future 

subdivision to the municipality and to public lands. 

 

IX. Emergency Services –Mt. Crested Butte Police Department, and the Crested Butte 

Fire Protection District which includes emergency medical services and fire 

protection. This includes successors and/or assigns, and future service providers. 

 

To the extent that any item mentioned in C.R.S. 31-12-105 (l)(e) is not reflected in the 

documents, maps and plans included as a part of this Three Mile Plan, the plan should be 

construed to mean that no such facilities are contemplated to be provided. 

 

The proposed land uses for the Three Mile Plan area consist of the various zoning districts 

described in the Code of the Town of Mt. Crested Butte, Colorado. 

 

In the event of any conflict between anything in the foregoing elements of the Three Mile 

Plan and the Town Code, ordinances or regulations, the Town Code, ordinances and 

regulations shall control.  The Town Master Plan and other elements of the above documents 

shall control with respect to any conflicts with provisions of the Three Mile Plan incorporated 

from other “non- Town" entities. 

 

2. ANNEXATION 

 

A. INTRODUCTION  

 

Annexation of areas adjacent to cities and towns is often crucial to establishing and 

maintaining urban order and effective government. Unorganized development and 

population growth frequently occur just outside municipal boundaries due to less 

expensive property values and less restrictive zoning laws. Problems associated with 

uncontrolled development include increased traffic congestion, failure of septic systems, 

inadequate water supply, inadequate roads, need for additional police protection and 

inappropriate land planning. Unincorporated outlying areas benefit in many ways from 

the adjoining municipalities through use of their parks, streets, and utilities without 

contributing to the cost of providing and maintaining them. 

 

200 of 223



Annexation, properly used, enables urbanized areas to unite with the municipality and benefit 

from socially and economically related issues. It allows Town administrative personnel to 

address needs in a manner consistent with policies of the annexing municipality. Most 

importantly, it guarantees a municipality responsible control over the future development of 

the fringe area.  Municipal zoning and land use extended to adjacent areas in a logical 

manner will provide orderly growth and avoid incompatible land uses. 

 

B. GOALS 

 

1. FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREAS (Exhibit A) - The Town of Mt. Crested Butte 

has discussed the growth boundaries of the town. There may be areas within the 

identified areas for potential growth which are unsuitable for certain types of 

development because of topography, natural hazards, or sensitive natural areas. Any 

annexation application will be reviewed for suitability of the proposed development 

in accordance with the Town’s Code and land use policies.  

 

A. Areas Identified for Potential Growth:  

1. The 10.28 acre parcel of land below Hunter Hill Rd between Timberline 

and Overlook Condos (shown on Exhibit A as Area A in white shaded 

area). 

2. The area west of the Town boundaries towards the Washington Gulch 

area (shown on Exhibit A as Area B in white shaded area). 

3. The skier domain area (shown on Exhibit A as Area C in white shaded 

area). 

4. Upper Loop Parcel adjacent to the Overlook Subdivision, owned by the 

U.S. Forest Service (shown on Exhibit A as Area D). 

5. Areas north of the current Town boundaries, owned by the U.S. Forest 

Service (shown on Exhibit A as Area E). 

6. Areas east of the Parcel C tract of land that was part of the 3 Way Land 

Trade between CBMR, the U.S. Forest Service, and the Colorado Board 

of Land Commissioners (shown on Exhibit A as Area F). 

 

B. Areas Proposed for No Residential or Commercial Development: 

1. Upper Loop Parcel adjacent to the Overlook Subdivision (shown on 

Exhibit A as Area D) 

2. Areas north of the current Town boundaries (shown on Exhibit A as 

Areas E) 

3. Areas east of the Parcel C tract of land that was part of the 3 Way Land 

Trade between CBMR, the U.S. Forest Service, and the Colorado Board 

of Land Commissioners (sown on Exhibit A as Areas F).  

 

With the areas proposed for no residential or commercial development, annexation must 

provide a unique opportunity for the Town, including land preservation, protection of open 

space, parks or recreational opportunities, etc. 

 

201 of 223

lewisabrams2
Highlight

lewisabrams2
Highlight



2. DENSITY- The provisions of the zoning chapter of the Mt. Crested Butte Code can 

be extended to adjacent areas in a logical manner to encourage orderly growth and 

prevent incompatible land uses. Municipal boundaries can be "squared off ' and made 

more orderly and uniform, thus eliminating confusion as to whether a particular 

parcel should look to the municipality or to the county to obtain services. 

 

The Town of Mt. Crested Butte employs various methods for control of density. The 

Town regulates the size of lots and the size of buildings relative to lot size by means 

of the zoning chapter of the Town Code. The zoning chapter stipulates minimum 

property sizes in various districts. 

 

3.  ZONING - Together with setback, open space, height, bulk, and footprint 

requirements, lot size standards are used as a means of controlling the character of a 

particular area. The establishment of very large minimum lot sizes is sometimes used 

to avoid conventional subdivisions. Large lot zoning may also be used where the 

terrain is very rough and more flexibility is needed for locating building sites.  

Smaller lot sizes and larger allowable densities create cluster type developments such 

as those in the base area of Mt. Crested Butte. 

 

In addition to lot size requirements, the Town zoning districts prescribe minimum lot 

widths and frontages. 

 

a. Residential - Residential land use in Mt. Crested Butte has been based on the 

concept that large lot sizes decrease density and thereby create a more 

desirable residential character. The characteristics are open space buffers 

between residences, a buffering of low and high density multi-family 

developments between single family residential and commercial 

development, and the use of open space and pedestrian corridors to define 

developments visually. 

 

The Town of Mt. Crested Butte would like to encourage diversity by allowing 

a mixture of housing choices including smaller lots, clustering and density 

bonuses or incentives for providing affordable housing where appropriate. 

Smaller lots and higher density may improve affordable housing opportunities 

and will reduce the per unit cost of public services. Even with some higher 

densities, the Town would like to maintain lower densities at the edges of Mt. 

Crested Butte as a transition to the rural nature of the county outside the town. 

 

1. Reduce the allowable density in subdivisions by clustering building 

structures within pockets between ridge lines to provide more open 

space. 

 

2. Develop structures in areas with appropriate soil conditions, slopes, 

and free of natural hazards. 

 

202 of 223



3. Avoid ridge line development to protect the view shed, hide 

structures, and limit density. 

 

4. Maintain a set of design guidelines for building construction, which 

includes building height, colors, lighting, roofs, landscaping, parking, 

etc. 

 

5. Provide affordable community housing. 

 

b. Commercial - Commercial land use in Mt. Crested Butte is based on the 

concept that clustering of lodging and services within the same area 

minimizes the impact of the resort aspects of the community on the 

infrastructure. In Mt. Crested Butte, this area is located at the base of the ski 

area, the major economic influence on the Town. 

 

1. Develop structures in areas with appropriate soil conditions, slopes, 

and free of natural hazards. 

 

2. Avoid ridge line development to protect the view shed, hide 

structures, and limit density. 

 

3. Maintain a set of design guidelines for building construction, which 

includes building height, colors, lighting, roofs, landscaping, parking, 

etc. 

 

4. Discourage commercial development, including large, enclosed 

recreation facilities along County Road 317 between Mt. Crested 

Butte and Crested Butte. 

 

5. Require commercial delivery routes to be developed in new   

  commercial developments. 

 

6. Provide affordable community housing. 

 

c. Open Space 

 

The Town also requires the platting of open space areas as a part of the 

subdivision process. Coordination of subdivision controls with density 

restrictions is required in establishing an overall density for subdivisions. 

Important aspects of the Mt. Crested Butte economy are the recreational 

amenities and the Town's relationship to surrounding public lands. This is 

accomplished by the designation of open space. Open space designation has 

several functions beyond recreational uses and access to public lands. This 

zoning classification can provide buffering between different types of 

development. This buffering mitigates conflicts between different types of 

203 of 223



activity usually associated with differing land use classifications and provides 

relief from continuous development of a similar nature. Open space 

designation also protects and preserves sensitive environmental areas, vistas, 

scenic corridors, and community amenities. 

 

d. Natural Hazards 

 

Natural hazards in the Mt. Crested Butte area are the result of natural 

geologic conditions and hydrology processes that, if unrecognized or 

inadequately planned for, can result in loss of life, damage to structures, and 

costly maintenance, especially for homes, other buildings, roads, and utilities. 

In most cases, safe development of such areas will necessitate the 

modification of natural ongoing processes by high cost engineering practices. 

Appropriate design standards and well thought out land use profiles can be 

successful in mitigating some natural hazards, but forethought during 

annexation can serve to avoid many of the related problems and associate 

development costs. 

 

e. Wetlands 

 

Wetlands are often found along perennial and intermittent streams and 

drainages. These wetland areas are critical from both a development and 

natural resource stand point. Contemporary planning principals advocate the 

protection of wetlands and natural water bodies by integrating such natural 

drainage features into the designs for new development. This integration 

process avoids unnecessary infrastructure development/maintenance expense, 

bypasses bureaucratic problems associated with Clean Water Act and water 

rights, and eliminates the potential degradation associated with engineered 

channeling techniques. The annexation of areas with wetland features should 

only be done in a manner that provides appropriate protection to these 

resources. 

 

f. Habitat Corridors 

 

The Town advocates that all annexation proposal must protect both game and 

non-game wild life habitat areas, migration corridors, breeding areas, food 

sources, and other related habitat needs. Any proposed annexations should be 

coordinated in detail with the U.S. Forest Service, Colorado Department of 

Wildlife, Rocky Mountain Biological Laboratory and other interested 

stakeholders to identify critical habitat environments. Such coordination 

should address not only land use configuration impact, but also the long-term 

preservation of unique sub-alpine/alpine environments and how those 

environments are critical to the wildlife that inhabit the areas. 

 

3. FINANCIAL REASONS - Annexation may serve to protect and enhance the 

municipal tax base. It increases the Town's property valuation and may help to avoid 

204 of 223



an imbalance between taxable resources and municipal obligations; It will obligate 

new development to pay its share of the costs already in effect such as police and fire 

protection. 

  

4. MUNICIPAL SERVICES AND UTILITIES - Annexation is an efficient and 

economical means of extending municipal services and utilities. Any new annexation 

to Mt. Crested Butte involves extending existing services to the development at the 

developers’ expense. It would also be a means of controlling ingress and egress to the 

area. Municipal services recognized in this category include: 

 

street systems 

water and sanitation systems 

fire and police protection 

emergency services 

garbage collection 

recreational facilities and trails 

natural gas services 

electrical service 

telecommunication services 

transit services 

 

5. SOCIAL AND GOVERNMENTAL REASONS - Annexation may provide the 

means for citizens in the fringe area to become politically active by participating in 

policy-making decisions. It increases the municipality's size and population thereby 

allowing a greater population base when applying for grants, funding, and associated 

financial and political needs. 

 

6. TRANSPORTATION: 

a. Limit the access points on Gothic County Road to a maximum of two per 

subdivision and attempt to combine access points for adjacent subdivisions. 

b. Provide appropriate traffic control measures at intersections. Specifically, 

widen the Gothic County Road and provide acceleration and deceleration 

lanes at any intersection with the Gothic County Road. 

c. Provide for public transportation by dedicating land for the location of future 

bus stops, widening roads, and designing proper tum radiuses for sufficient 

sight distances around comers. 

d. Designate and improve multiple use trails. 

e. Encourage provision of alternative methods of transportation. 

 

7. PARKS, RECREATION, AND OPEN SPACE: 

a. Provide an open space buffer zone between the potentially developed portions 

of the subdivisions and Gothic Road. 

b. Provide open space between the two towns and preserve unique natural 

features such as Washington Gulch. 

205 of 223



c. Provide opportunities for active recreation, such as athletic fields and cross 

country trails, open to the public, or available for contractual use, and 

consider dedication of land for public recreation facilities.  

d. Prevent the loss of existing public access into lands used for recreational 

purposes. 

e. Provide access to new areas for recreational use so citizens and visitors have 

the opportunity to use these areas. 

 

8. SEWAGE AND WATER 

a. Discourage developments in the 3-mile area of sufficient size and density that 

would require new central water and sewage treatment facilities. 

 

C. WRITTEN CRITERIA1  

 

1. The Town of Mt Crested Butte, while concerned with development in the entire north 

end of Gunnison Valley, proposes to focus future annexation so as not to conflict 

with neighboring municipalities or with county land use policies. 

 

2. Mt. Crested Butte will annex no land which either cannot be served by Mt. Crested 

Butte Water and Sanitation District or cannot show proof that adequate water and 

sanitation facilities exist. 

 

3. To annex land where it is clearly desirable to configure municipal boundaries for the 

purpose of greater efficiency or economy in providing municipal services and where 

such annexation is determined to be in the best interest of the municipality and the 

annexed property. 

 

4. To annex the territory 

• which is determined to be urban in character; 

• where urbanization is clearly imminent and where such territory is in need of 

proper land use controls to include zoning and subdivision controls, building 

regulations, adequate roadway systems and good engineering standards; 

• open land that would be best used as open space or parks within the Town. 

 

5. Annexation will be initiated, financially supported, and promoted by those living 

within the area proposed to be annexed. 

 

6. The area under consideration for annexation should be a part of or located in the 

identified zones of potential growth and expansion of the municipality. The general 

terrain of the area should allow for additional future expansion of utilities. 

 

7. The cost of providing permanent ordinary municipal services should be fully 

analyzed and determined. 

 

206 of 223



8. A preliminary site and land use plan of the area proposed to be annexed must 

accompany any annexation petition. 

 

9. The proposed zoning of the annexed territory must be appropriate to the Town's 

Master Plan. 

 

10. The annexation of any previously subdivided land shall require an annexation 

agreement which shall provide for compliance with the Town Code. 

__________________________ 

1 See Town of Mt. Crested Butte’s Annexation Resolution, No. 1 series 1995 as amended. 

207 of 223



208 of 223

lewisabrams2
Typewritten Text

lewisabrams2
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B

lewisabrams2
Rectangle



209 of 223

nancyg
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C



210 of 223



211 of 223



212 of 223



213 of 223



214 of 223



215 of 223



216 of 223



217 of 223

nancyg
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D, SNOW STORAGE



218 of 223

nancyg
Typewritten Text

nancyg
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT E, DRAINAGE PLAN



5FT CUT/RETAINING
WALL

10FT FILL

10+ft �ll

ENTIRE ROAD BUILT ON FILL

GRADE STEEPER THAN ALLOWABLE BY MT CB REGS

SECTION OF ROAD TRENDS PERPENDICULAR TO SLOPE

SECTION OF ROAD BUILT ON FILL

SECTION OF ROAD WILL REQUIRE RETAINING WALL

ROAD ENTERS HUNTER HILL ON CURVE @ <90°

GRADE STEEPER THAN ALLOWABLE BY MT CB REGS

SECTION OF ROAD TRENDS PERPENDICULAR TO SLOPE

ENTIRE ROAD BUILT ON FILL, UP TO 18FT THICK!

GRADE STEEPER THAN ALLOWABLE BY MT CB REGS

SECTION OF ROAD TRENDS PERPENDICULAR TO SLOPE

WILL REQUIRE PARTIAL REMOVAL OF ESTABLISHED ASPEN
 GROVE

18 FT!!! FILL

219 of 223

nancyg
Typewritten Text

nancyg
Typewritten Text

nancyg
Typewritten Text

nancyg
Typewritten Text
ATTACHEMENT F, ROAD GRADES

nancyg
Typewritten Text



 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:             Mt. Crested Butte Water & Sanitation District Board of Directors 
From:        Mike Fabbre, District Manager 
Date:         December 10, 2020 
Subject:    Hunter Ridge, LLC, Inclusion Application 
 
 
This memorandum will serve as the staff recommendation to the Mt. Crested Butte 
Water & Sanitation District (District) Board of Directors (Board) on the inclusion petition 
submitted by Hunter Ridge, LLC, for the property commonly referred to as 45 Hunter Hill 
Road (Property).  The District will be conducting a public hearing and special Board 
meeting on December 16, 2020 at 5pm to discuss the petition and potentially grant, 
grant with conditions, or deny the proposed petition for inclusion into the District. 
 
The District currently owns, operates, and maintains approximately 1,210 linear feet of 
8” PVC, SDR 35 pipe and six manholes that exist on the Property.  All District 
infrastructure on the Property has an easement of ten feet on each side from center line 
of pipe. 
 
Wastewater 
The property inclusion would provide the District with the opportunity to alleviate serious 
and costly hazards that result from the current placement of the sewer lines across the 
Property. 
 
As background information, the District conducts maintenance on all sanitary sewer 
system piping by high pressure jetting and camera inspections once every four years 
and every year on high use sections.  This results in every wastewater pipe in the 
District being jetted and inspected at a minimum of once every four years.  When the 
section of pipe on the Property was installed the District did not own its current jet truck 
that has an industry standard 400’ hose reel for a truck sized appropriately for our 
topography.  The design of the jetting process is to be able to park the jet truck at a 
single manhole and be able to jet up to 400’ of sewer pipe.  The truck then drives to the 
next manhole to continue the process.  Access to this critical infrastructure for routine 
maintenance is another reason why manholes are ideally placed in roadways with the 
additional benefit of snow removal during winter months.   
 
This Property presents many different logistical problems for maintaining this section of 
pipe.  Currently, the District has an easement but does not have vehicular access to the 
manholes because of the topography of the Property.  Building a road on the current 
easement would be very costly, difficult and would not solve all of the problems.  Two of 
the manholes exist near a delineated avalanche zone and contain sharp interior bends.  

220 of 223



An operator would need to enter the manhole to feed the jet hose and/or camera from 
one pipe into the other in order to conduct the maintenance on that section of pipe and 
not damage expensive equipment. 
 
Health and safety of the District operators is of utmost concern when having to enter 
these potentially dangerous environments.  Proper confined space entry dictates 
atmospheric monitoring and tripod/harness entry in case of asphyxiation among many 
other precautions.  Vehicular access facilitates proper confined space protocols and 
decreases potential health and safety concerns.     
 
However, even if the District built a road on the existing easement, we do not believe we 
could remove the two manholes from those precarious locations based on the slope and 
grade.  Re-routing and re-alignment of the sewer line would give the District safe year-
round access for maintenance, jetting, inspections, and emergency repairs.  Right now, 
we do not have a safe and reasonable way to get our trucks and equipment to most of 
the manholes on the Property.  An emergency event during the winter months would be 
extremely difficult to repair and could result in a multitude of dangerous consequences.   
 
The District had JVA Engineers conduct a sanitary sewer capacity analysis evaluating 
the full build-out of the Overlook subdivision area and all potential future growth that 
would flow through the pipe on the Property.  The report concluded that the pipe 
capacity could support full build-out of the existing community in that area as well as 
support full build-out of the Property as proposed in the inclusion petition.  
 
Water 
The District has sufficient water rights to supply the inclusion of the Property. 
JVA Engineering conducted a project needs assessment report for the District in 2019 
and concluded that the District has adequate absolute water rights for at least the next 
20 years and beyond.  Resource Engineering has conducted studies for the District that 
have determined that acquiring the 300-acre feet in Long Lake as part of the Upper 
Gunnison River Water Conservancy District (UGRWCD) agreement would more than 
satisfy the entire District at full build out.  The District also owns 700-acre feet of 
conditional water rights for the North Village Reservoir.  The District has discretion to 
accept a monetary payment in lieu of water rights as a condition of inclusion. 
 
Geotechnical 
There may be unique geotechnical issues existing on this Property but the District deals 
with unique geotechnical issues throughout its boundaries.  Two studies have been 
conducted on the Property.   
 
The District’s potential infrastructure for the Property would consist of water and 
wastewater mainline piping, sewer manholes, water valves and fire hydrants.  The 
District’s rules and regulations require proper bedding material and other preventive 
measures to offset any geotechnical issues or subsurface conditions.  Pipe placed in a 
trench with proper bedding material and burial depth in macros shale soils is common 
practice for the District.  District infrastructure necessary to serve the Property would of 

221 of 223



course be installed at the sole cost of the Developer, with adequate security provided to 
the District in advance. 

Financial 
The District would potentially receive a $49,000 (per UGRWCD) one-time payment in 
lieu of water rights that could be used to help pay for the Long Lake project or any other 
future water rights acquisition.  The District would also receive tap fees, usage fees, and 
availability of service fees, and increased property tax revenue as a result of the 
development of the Property.  The numbers listed in the table below are based on the 
2021 budget and will increase over time as the Property is being developed over 
multiple years. 

Financial Impact of 45 Hunter Hill Road Inclusion 

One Time Cash Inflows   Initial 
 @ Full 

Build-Out 

Cash in Lieu of Water Rights $ 49,000   UGRWCD 
Tap Fees $        408,020   20 SFE Units 1,2 

$       49,000 $        408,020 

Ongoing Cash Inflows (annual)  Initial 
 @ Full 

Build Out 
Use Fees $         19,734  16 mtrs/12 mos  3,4 
Availability of Service Fees $         3,655 

 
8 lots for 4 qtrs 5 

Property Tax $         2,500 $          15,000  estimated 
$         6,155 $         34,734 

1 12 Triplex units @ 1 each, 4 Homes @ 2 each = 20 SFE Units 
2 2021 MCBWSD Approved Budget SFE Tap Fee Rate is $20,401 
3 12 triplex units + 4 homes = 16 meters 
4 $102.78 is the 2021 min. monthly User Fee 
5 $114.23 is the 2021 quarterly Availability of Service Rate 

The nature of the existing sewer line is such that if the District does not include the 
Property and re-align the existing pipe, there will be significant future capital costs to 
build vehicular access to the manholes and re-engineer the existing public infrastructure 
within the existing easement (see Wastewater section above).  If the Property is 
included into the District, the developer will be responsible for granting new easements, 
re-aligning the pipeline and paying for all the new infrastructure.  

Recommendation 
The staff recommendation is based off a pragmatic look at the infrastructure and 
operations required for the District to fulfill its mission, as well as the advantages vs. 
disadvantages to the District as a whole. The mission of the Mt. Crested Butte Water & 
Sanitation District is to provide reliable and quality water along with environmentally 
responsible wastewater services to our community in a cost-effective manner, with a 
commitment to public health and safety for our customers and staff. 

This recommendation does not consider any other political implications or outside 
decisions that are not appropriate for the staff to consider in making a recommendation. 

222 of 223



The District is tasked with providing safe drinking water and wastewater services at a 
reasonable cost to its customers.  It is beyond staff objectives to judge aspects of 
property inclusion that fall outside our areas of responsibility.  The recommendation is 
based on the benefits to the entire District and all its constituents in view of the 
foregoing considerations. The staff recommendation is as follows: 
 

• Approve the Hunter Ridge, LLC, inclusion application with a condition that all of 
the JVA Engineering requirements be met and all District rules and regulations 
are met.  This includes but is not limited to easements, warranty bonds, 
maintenance bonds, survey work, as-built drawings, etc., as well as a cash in 
lieu of water rights payment in the amount of $49,000.00, to be paid in advance.  
All costs of the public infrastructure built to serve the Property would be the sole 
expense of the developer. 

• The Board require any and all additional conditions on inclusion as they see fit. 
• Require a surety bond or other form of security acceptable to the District in an 

amount adequate to secure the public infrastructure necessary to serve the 
Property.  This includes but is not limited to all water and wastewater mainlines, 
service lines, pre-taps, curb stops, and all associated appurtenances. 
 

Recommendation of inclusion provides many benefits to the District with minimal 
disadvantages.  These include health and safety to our employees, advantageous 
operations and maintenance, positive financial impacts, and lessening of future capital 
projects and costs. 
 
Respectfully submitted to the District Board as well to all concerned citizens in our 
community.  

223 of 223


	12-16-2020 Agenda.pdf
	NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING HUNTER RIDGE FINAL.pdf
	Application.pdf
	Application.pdf
	Hunter Ridge Petition for Inclusion 3-28-2020.pdf
	Petition updated 4620 copy.pdf
	Deed.pdf
	Title.pdf
	Statement of Authority.pdf
	3 Color Plat.pdf
	HunterRidge SewerRealignment P1 100820.pdf
	Subdivision proposal full packet Mt. CB.pdf
	DOC010
	06-19-18
	06-19-18
	06-19-18
	Table of Contents
	Work Session
	Work Session - Corner at Brush Creek
	Public Hearing
	Public Hearing Format - Hunter Ridge
	Hunter Ridge Subdivision Sketch Plan
	Minutes
	Minutes - 06-05-18
	Reports
	Town Manager's Report
	Manager's Report
	2018 Fire Restriction Notice - Stage 2
	Department Head Reports
	Community Development Report
	Finance Report
	Police Department Report
	Public Works Report
	Town Council Reports
	Correspondence
	Correspondence from Living Journeys
	Old Business
	Conditional Use - Maintenance Building
	Ordinance 2 Series 2018 Approving Nordic PUD
	Ordinance 3 Series 2018 Amending DDA Boundary
	Proof of Publication for Ordinance 2 and Ordinance 3
	New Business
	Housing Authority Election
	Three Seasons C-2  C-3 Cluster Agreement
	Homestead Development Contract

	DOC010


	Soils Report -3MB.pdf
	Lambert Hunter Ridge_12-27-18.PDF
	cert of good standing.pdf
	Petition for Inclusion Cost Reimbursement Agreement_Executed.pdf

	Letter of Credit for Hunter Hill Warranty (002).pdf

	1028.2e - Hunter Ridge Development Sanitary Sewer Analysis_20201113.pdf
	Background and Research
	Sanitary Sewer Analysis

	Hunter Hill Road Includsion Public Comments with Contents Links.pdf
	Grindlay Email 12.01.20.pdf
	2-7-18 (1).pdf
	2-7-18.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	MCBW&SD retaining wall variance.pdf





	Sanitary Sewer Analysis.pdf
	Background and Research
	Sanitary Sewer Analysis


	Button4: 
	Button1: 
	Button2: 
	Button3: 
	Button5: 
	Button6: 
	Button7: 
	Button8: 
	Button9: 
	Button10: 
	Button11: 
	Button12: 
	Button13: 
	Button14: 
	Button15: 
	Button16: 
	Button17: 
	Button18: 
	Button19: 
	Button20: 
	Button21: 
	Button22: 


